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Founded in 1979 by offshore racing legend Reggle Fountain,;Fountain® Powerboats desugns marlufac-

quarters lieson 65 waterfront acres on the Pamhco RIVEI‘ in Washmgton North Carolma S
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tures and sells luxury, high-performance sport boats, Sport fishing boatsand express cruisefs. OurBéad-

Fas

7
-\K--

- - - = —~. . coem T - - - - . .- - ~ - T -~
. S
.- T =T T - .
Wlthm thls prlme 10cat|0n Fountaln produces more than 20 models of v- bottom boats that are \mdely
o halled as the industry’s fastest safest and best handllng Our 237, 000 square-foot, 1S0-certified rﬁanu-
- - factunng facility accommodates more .than 40 boats at once in. varlous stages of productlon Before
- ~ - -delivery,-each boat is water-tested in- real condltlons in the Pamllco River to-ensure-its superloraquallty.
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Over the past five years, we have scen a decrease in the number of boats shipped and an

increase in revenue per boat as the Company's product mix shifts from smaller to larger, high-

end boats

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Operations Statement Data 2008
Sales $68,202.620
Net Income (loss) (2,199,828)
Income (loss) per share {48)
Weighted average shares outstanding 4,587,193
Diluted eamings per share {48)
Diuted weighted average shares outstanding 4,587,193
Balance Sheet Data

Current assets $14,302,553
Total Assets 37,324,660
Current liabilities 16,804,027
Long term debot 20428948
Stockholders' equity 86,857
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2007

$68,829,087
(5,046,286)
(1.05)
4,821887
(1.05)
4,821,987

$13,381.819
33,416,945
13,725,455
16,969,407

3,636,359

2006

$79.226,224
2404912
50
4,819,275
49
4,903,949

$17134,786
37,860,360
13,232,828

156,228,700

9083699
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2005

$71182,069
756,212

8
4,815,188
15
4,890124

$13,023,588
33,034,252
11,062,016
15,433,446
6,538,790

2004

$59,296,964
809,087

A3

4,761,460

13

4825179

$12,460.218
30621143
6,782,584
17,868.178
5721726




A LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

These are challenging times. The negative economic factors that im-
pacted the boating industry since 2005 have continued, in some cas-
es becoming worse, Already high gas prices steadily increased, credit
tightened, insurance costs rose, and consumer confidence declined.
Throughout the industry, fewer boats were purchased, especially lower-

priced models, resulting in an overall decline.

This type of economic downturn is not a new phenomenon. Manu-
facturers with a long history such as Fountain Powerboats have expe-

rienced similar drops in business before, in particular in the late 1980s

when the government imposed a luxury tax on boats, and again in 2001
and 2002, in the wake of the tragedy of the terrorist attacks on September 11, We also survived a severe inter-

ruption in business when the Fountain factory burned years ago.

Fortunately, tough times never last, but tough people do. To weather the starm, as we have successfully done
before, our company has responded aggressively and dramatically in 2008. | know personally that you don‘t
win races or succeed in business by taking a passive, wait-and-see approach. To finish first and control your
own destiny, you must create a strategic plan and then implement it by throttling forward with single-minded

purpose and vigor.

Fountain Powerboats is meeting today’s economic challenge head on with great confidence, realistic expec-
tations, and a sound strategy for the future. | am firmly convinced that Fountain Powerboats will not only sur-

vive the tough times, but also emerge stronger, larger and with less competition from other manufacturers.

My self-assurance is based on a business plan that has already produced positive tangible results for Fountain
Powerhoats. Despite the down economy, 2008 ranks as the fourth best year in the
history of our company, which was founded in 1979, 30 years ago. Our net sales

volume is nearly equal to last year's, and we have trimmed expenses to operate

We have created a new sales concept in our Fountain Dealers Factory Superstore,

added innovations to our boats and, in the most confident move of all, we acquired
Baja Marine, an established high-performance boat manufacturer that will fold seam-
lessly into our manufacturing facility. While these are challenging times, we are excited about the future and how

these bold, new endeavors will invigorate our company and protect the legacy of Fountain Powerboats.

The Baja acquisition secures our position as the world's largest builder of high-performance sport boats. It
also sends a clear message that our company firmly believes in the industry’s future and our abilities to suc-

cessfully integrate Baja into the Fountain family, which will strengthen our legendary brands.

Acquiring Baja also makes great economic sense. Our overhead won't increase appreciably when we begin to

build Baja boats at our facility, and that cost can be spread over both companies. No new costs will be incurred




for land, buildings or equipment, and with the increased volume, our factory will be operating closer to 100%.
In addition, Brunswick Corporation, the farmer owner of Baja Marine, favorably structured the transaction
with no immediate overhead for Fountain, Our sole supplier of Mercury engines, Brunswick has been a valued

partner for 30 years, and this sale further cements our relationship.

Fountain has also strengthened our partnerships with dealers through our new Superstore, which is located
at our headquarters in North Carolina. While this prototype store functions independently, it also works hand-
in-hand with dealers throughout the world by offering their customers our huge inventory, selling boats for
them, and accepting boats that dealers haven't been able to sell. The concept has just been introduced, and

it has already shown great promise.

Following our strategy to partner with fewer, better dealers, Fountain has pared down our dealer network to
26 of the very best. These select dealers are financiaily secure, control large territories, and have demonstrated
that they are supremely competent at sales and service after the sale. We expect our relationship with our new

Baja dealers to be just as beneficial for both parties.

We have also strengthened our presence overseas. By opening new dealer-
ships and thrashing the competition in offshore races, the Fountain brand is
gaining widespread recognition. 2008 was our best year ever internationally o
with sales of approximately $8.5 million. Add the potential for Baja, which sold
approximately $6.8 million worth of boats overseas, and the returns look even

brighter for the future.

As always, product innovations have driven sales. In 2008, we introduced a new twin-engine 48 express
cruiser and a smaller, affordably priced 33’ sport boat. We also fine-tuned certain features on our fish boats
for better fuel efficiency and smoother rides, and altered the bhow seating on our center console fish boats for
more family appeal. We will continue to break new ground in 2009 with a brand-new 43’ express cruiser and
by reintroducing our classic 31' fish boat, but with a narrow beam for easier, less restrictive towing. Of course,

Fountain's new line of Baja boats will increase our offerings dramatically.

This year included some very significant events, and we expect next year to be even more eventful. We will
continue to heavily market our product lines and brand image, and enhance our highly popular web site with
compelling sales videos and videos of events. We are embracing the future, knowing that cur company will

power through today’s challenges and emerge a winner. That is the Fountain way, and it always will be.

Sincerely,

-y
DEALERS’ FACTORY SUPERS

WW

Reggie Fountain
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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STREAMLINED FOR SUCCESS

In the 30 years that Fountain Powerboats has
been in business, we have continually fine-tuned
our operating procedures for greater efficiencies
and to better reflect the ever-changing needs of
our customers. Free of bureaucratic layers, our
company has the rare ability to make decisions
quickly at the top level and act upon them imme-
diately for maximum benefits. We never hesitate
to make positive changes, an invaluable trait in

light of today’s economic climate.

Over the past several years, we have altered the
flow of work within our 237,000-square-foot
manufacturing facility to improve efficiencies.
Consequently, labor costs in relation to the seli-
ing prices of our boats have been reduced signifi-
cantly, enabling us to cut back the workforce in
certain departments and utilize those employees
elsewhere. By calculating the man-hours in each
step of the manufacturing process for every boat
that leaves our facility, we have a clearer picture

of areas for possible improvement.

Upgrades in lighting and electrical circuitry and
better usage practices have resulted in a nearly

20% decrease in kilowatt hours used. Similarly,

eliminating water-cooled equipment and improv-
ing the nozzles used for cleaning have cut water
usage in half. We have also saved $280,000 in
propane usage for gas heat this year, which re-
duces our emissions and keeps us environmen-

tally conscious.

Our employees have embraced this cost-saving
mentality and strictly follow the company's en-
ergy conservation policy. In fact, the performance
of our supervisors is judged in part by how well
they adhere to our conservatign measures. By
being disciplined and turning off systems during
breaks, shift changes and off-hours, the savings

have been enormous.

We have been just as diligent with regard to Hu-
man Resources. To meet the challenge of retain-
ing and procuring employees, we look closely at
employee benefits to see where we could reduce
costs while continuing to offer a strong, compre-
hensive benefits package and maintain the viabil-
ity of all jobs. Fountain Powerbioats also fosters
good merale and teamwork on and off the job
with company-sponsored golf eutings and soft-

ball teams.







ACQUIRING BAJA MARINE—A SIGN OF CONFIDENCE

Toward the end of fiscal 2008, Fountain Power-
boats acquired Baja Marine from Brunswick Corpo-
ration. It was a strategic acquisition that demon-
strated our confidence in the future of the beoating
industry and the potential of a more diverse port-
folio of products. The synergies between Fountain

and Baja are many; it's a perfect fit.

Both companies were founded in the 1970s and
share a long, storied history of manufacturing
high-performance sport boats. With the acquisi-
tion, Fountain is now unequivocally the world’s

largest builder of high-performance sport boats.

When production begins in 2009, our line of
products will range from 19’ to 48 with Baja
dominating the lower end of the size spectrum.
Fountain does not offer smaller, entry-level boats
in the 19’ to 30’ range, which has been Baja’s spe-
cialty, and we expect these new additions to open
a wealth of opportunities. While there will be
minimal overlap in the 30" to 40° range, Fountain
boats will offer more amenities, more options

and superior performance and handling.

Baja complements our existing line of boats
and will integrate well into our existing 237,000-
square-foot manufacturing facility. Initially, we
can absorb the additional business without in-
creasing the size of our facility, purchasing more
equipment, building costly new molds, or ex-

panding our administrative and sales staff. The

extra volume from producing Baja boats will fold
seamless-ty INto our current operation with a mini-

mal effect on overhead.

As orders dictate, expansion will follow. We have
projected creating 250 new jobs at our facility and
spending $12 million on capital improvements
over the next five years. As an inéentive, the State
of North Carolina has approved grants and tax
credits for Fountain Powerboats that will assist

with future expenses as production ramps up.

In 2009, Baja boats will be built to Fountain's
uncompromising standards with our established
manufacturing methods and high-quality materi-
als. Fiberglass will be hand laid, and our specially
formulated, stronger and more {lexible resin will
be used in Baja boats. Lightweight, high-density
coring will replace balsa wood. We will also em-
ploy our six-step bonding process to unite the
deck and hull for superior durability and less flex.
Every Baja boat built with Fountain's proven tech-
niques and materials will carry a longer, six-year
warranty. Brunswick Corporation will be respon-

sible for all warranty issues prior to our purchase.

Fountain will breathe new life into the Baja brand,
and in return Fountain will expand our product
tine to include a full range of smaller, high-per-
formance boats that will attract buyers that once

couldn’t afford a Fountain poweérboat.










OUR NEW SUPERSTORE SUPPORTS DEALERS

AND CUSTOMERS ALIKE

This year, Fountain Powerhoats created the Foun-
tain Dealers Factory Superstore at our headquar-
ters to better serve boaters in the Carolinas and
Virginia. The Superstore has also been a tremen-
dous benefit for Fountain dealers by supporting

their sales efforts.

It another dealer has a potential buyer, but not
the desired boat, the Superstore may well have it
inits inventory, as it's the largest in the country, In
that case, the boat can be shipped to the dealer,
or the buyer can come to the Superstore, and we
will sell the boat for the dealer without taking a

percentage of the sale.

The Superstore also accepts unsold inventory
from dealers, if we can sell it. That way, the dealer
eliminates the expense of marketing that boat,
frees up floor space, and can restock with a boat
more suitable for that sales territory. Since its
inception, the Superstore has supported dealers
domestically and internationally, strengthening
our partnerships and being more responsive to

aur buyers.

For customers in the Carolinas and Virginia, the
Superstore operates exactly like Fountain deal-

ers elsewhere. Buyers can purchase boats factory

direct at the lowest available price. Backed by the
financial strength of Fountain Powerboats, the
Superstore is able to take trade-ins on boats, en-
gines, trucks and cars, a benefit that significantly

facilitates sales.

The dedicated sales team at the Superstore has
the added advantage on being on the premise
with direct access to our manufacturing facility
and the Pamlico River. Detailed factory tours and
test-drives on the river are convincing sales tools,
especially if Reggie Fountain is on hand to demon-

strate our boats’ superior features and benefits.

Launched in the first quarter of 2008, the Su-
perstore was responsible for $3 million in sales
and earned additional profits from its service and
boating accessories departments. As the Super-
store matures, we expect revenues to increase
and this prototypical company store to be ex-

panded into other parts of the country.
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NEW MODELS IN 2008

We continue to push the envelope in every di-
rection by fine-tuning our product line. This year,
we introduced a twin-engine model of our 48
express cruiser and altered the stringer system to
accommodate the engines. Initially, this change
was in response to requests from the internation-
al market. Interest is now rising domestically, as
buyers discover that a Fountain with two Cum-
mins engines will still outperform the competi-
tion, and offer the added bonus of less mainte-
nance and improved fuel-efficiency. Sales of every
cruiser model have increased noticeably since we
switched to Cummins engines, which are manu-
factured in a joint venture with Mercury. They are
known for being more reliable, quieter and smok-

ing less than competitive engines.

We also introduced a 33 sport boat in response
to buyer interest for a Lightning-style boat that
was smaller than our existing 35° model. While
only two feet shorter, this new sport boat allows
for the engines to be side by side, rather than
staggered, so it uses a less costly drive system. We
also lowered the horsepower somewhat, without
significantly sacrificing performance, and reduced
the price accordingly, attracting buyers that once

couldn't afford a Lightning.

In addition, we enhanced the overall perfor-
mance of our fish boats for improved fuel effi-
ciency and better rides. We introduced hard tops
as an option on our canvas tee-top fish boats.
Qur center console fish boats now offer different
bow seating configurations to make them more

family friendly. In the same vein, we introduced

options in our cruiser fish boat ta increase seating

in the cockpit.

More changes on the horizon
Adding new models and enhancing others is
an ongoing process that keeps our designs cut-
ting-edge and highly relevant to the ever-chang-
ing marketplace. In anticipation of buyer needs
in 2009, we will introduce a 43" express cruiser,
the first completely new model in that category in
years. We will also completely redesign the cock-
pit of our 48’ cruiser, raising the floor to eliminate
the engine hump, which opens up the deck sig-
nificantly. The option of modular furniture allows
the buyers to configure the cockpit seating to fit

their needs.

The big news in fish boats is the return of our 31
model. The reintroduction will feature a narrow
heam so it can easily be towed behind a truck or
SUV without having to worry about wide-load re-
strictions. Besides easy transpottability, this clas-
sic fish boat will be double-stepped for astound-
ing performance, boast superior fuel efficiency,

and be our least expensive boat.

The addition of the Baja line, which will be in
production in 2009, offers an impressive variety
of even more economical boats. Moving forward,
buyers in every demographic segment will have
a greater opportunity to own an affordable boat
built to Fountain's exacting standards. The legacy
of Fountain will only grow as our product line ex-

pands to meet future demands.
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FEWER DEALERS PROVE LESS IS MORE

Dealers are the backbone of our sales, but more
dealers don’t necessarily guarantee more sales.
This year, we have continued our strategy to re-
duce the number of Fountain dealers in North
America, winnowing it down to 26. These deal-
ers are highly successful high-achievers that have
demonstrated their ability to sell our high-per-
formance boats, and we have rewarded them
accordingly by increasing the sizes of their sales
territories. Fountain now supports fewer, better
dealers responsible for larger territories. It has

proven to be a winning formula.

Our dealers are an elite group that has risen to
the top through their dedication to the Fountain
brand. Each one has met stringent requirements

to ensure that they are capable of properly rep-

resenting our company and the superior quality

of our products. Dealers must be highly trained
and well informed regarding the many features
and benefits that separate Fountain boats from
the competitor's. We supply every dealer with in-
structive sales videos that cover key points, such
as how to best demanstrate our boats on the wa-

ter, and how to properly deliver boats.

Besides training, each dealer must have a certi-
fied service department, a facility large enough
to display our boats year-round, and the finan-
cial wherewithal to accept trade-ins and maintain
a suitable inventory of Fountain boats. in 2009
some Fountain dealers will sell Baja boats, and
Baja dealers will be offered the opportunity to
sell Fountain boats. Baja presently has more than
80 dealers in a separate distribution network that

will expand our reach in 2009,




FUELING SALES THROUGH INNOVATION

Every year, we strengthen our preduct line by
enhancing existing models and introducing new
ones to mirror what customers want. Of course,
there are constants that never change and these

signatures define Fountain Powerboats.

Our boats will always be handcrafted with space
age materials, strictly quality controlled, loaded
with innovations, and water-tested in real condi-
tions on the Pamlico River. Consequently, Fountain
boats are revered as the fastest, safest, smooth-
est-riding, best-handling and most efficient boats

on the water.

The Fountain brand is legendary, and that name
recognition alone drives sales. But there are oth-

er distinctions that bolster sales, especially in a

down economy. High-end boats like ours still

»

tend to sell briskly when entry-level beat sales
are floundering, as our buyers are more afflu-
ent. Fountain boats boast an unrivaled resale
value. Our proprietary hull design delivers more

speed and performance with less horsepower,

. resulting in less maintenance and lower operat-

ing costs. For example, a competitive boat needs
an engine with 700 to 850 horsepower to match
the performance of our standard 525 horsepow-

er Mercury Mercruiser.

Another key is our unparalleled fuel efficiency
due to the low hydrodynamic drag of our hulls. As
gas prices soar higher with no end in sight, saving
fuel is critical to buyers and owners alike. When
we compared our 38’ sport fish cruiser outboard
with a similarly sized competitor’s boat with the
same horsepower in identical conditions, our
fuel consumption was nearly 50% less. The Foun-
tain boat went almost twice as far on the same

amount of gas.




GETTING THE WORD OUT WORLDWIDE

In a weak economy, marketing takes an even
greater importance. It must bfa highly targeted in
the media most likely to be seen by potential buy-
ers. Rather than pull back our marketing efforts in
2008, Fountain has aggressively pursued outlets
that will produce results in hopes of capturing ev-

ery possible sale.

The Internet has been a powerful marketing
tool, and Fountain's informative web site {www.
fountainpowerboats.com) receives as many as
five million hits a month worldwide, Visitors can
read about our history, products, manufactur-
ing techniques, and latest news. They can order
sportswear, find a nearby dealer, and watch epi-
sodes of “Reggie Fountain’s American Powerboat
Television,” a series dedicated to the world of

high-performance powerhoating.

Still, Fountain has only begun to tap the value of
our web site. In the coming year, we plan to en-
hance the visual portion by adding videos of Reg-
gie Fountain doing a walk-around in each of our
boats, personally demonstrating its features and
benefits, such as how our hull design improves
fuel economy and handling. We believe these vid-

eos will be highly persuasive and stimulate sales.

Another high-impact, visual tool is the launch of

a new television show on Fox Sports Network, fea-

turing Mr. Fountain. The show aired on Sundays
and covered highly popular events that Fountain
dominates, including tournamant fishing, poker

runs and pleasure boating.

Fountain will continue to market heavily in print
media and integrate the Baja line of boats into our
magazine advertising and direct mail pieces, which
will provide economies of scale without diluting
our message. This year, we also promoted the
Fountain name at more major and regional boat

shows, which proved to be excellent forums.

One of our most convincing forms of advertis-
ing is when a Fountain boat sets a world speed
record, wins a race, triumphs in a fishing tourna-
ment, or takes first place in a poker run. For in-
stance, in June, when a stock Fountain 38’ sport
fishing boat established a new world speed re-
cord from North Carclina’s Cape Hatteras Light-
house to New York’s Statue of Liberty, the feat
was covered in “Boating” magazine and on "Reg-
gie Fountain's American Powerboat Television.”
The value of Fountain’s winning tradition is im-
measurable, and it strongly re-enforces our brand

and superiority of our boats.




A WORLD OF POSSIBILITIES

Each year, the Fountain brand garners more
recognition internationally, as we penetrate new
markets, increase sales, and gain exposure from
Fountain boats crushing the competition in off-
shore races overseas. Our boats are sold through
21 international dealers in the primary boating re-
gions of Europe, Scandinavia, the Caribbean, the
Middle East and Asia. In 2009, we will continue to
explore other strategically located international
markets to assess their suitability with regard to

infrastructure, shipping costs and import duties.

Sales from Fountain Worldwide, our internation-
al distributor, topped $8 million in 2008, the best
in the history of the company. Recognizing our
commitment, “Commercial News USA,” the offi-
cial export magazine for the U.S. Department of
Commerce, named Fountain Worldwide its pres-

tigious “Exporter of the Year.”

While the weak U.S. dollar spurred sales, other

factors also contributed mightily. Our internation-

al presence is relatively new but gaining traction,
50 brand awareness is much higher than it was a
few years ago. The dominance of our 42' Light-
ning at the European Offshore Championship also
raised our profile, as did the appearance of Reggie

Fountain at one of the Powerboat P1 races.

The Fountain brand is also promoted at boating
events overseas, where we sell our products and
sportswear. In addition, used Fountain boats are
becoming available in more mature markets, in-
creasing the sheer number of our boats on the wa-
ter, which aids marketing. In 2009, we expect toin-
crease our exposure and sales and gain a stronger
foothold overseas through the synergies between

our international Fountain and Baja dealers.
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FOUNTAIN—A NAME THAT SELLS

Fountain sportswear carries an undeniable ca-
chet that reflects our hallowed history; it is an
unspoken sign that the person wearing it has a
taste for the finer things in life. As we expand the
Fountain brand into new markets worldwide and
continue to dominate races, fishing tournaments
and poker runs, our exposure will increase and
sales of merchandise should follow. In 2008, we
sold approximately $374,000 in sportswear and

accessories bearing the Fountain logo.

Eighty percent of our merchandise was sold
over the Internet, By eliminating the costs associ-
ated with printing catalogs, which scon become
dated, our margins have increased accordingly.
Selling through our web site also allows Fountain
to update the graphics and content effortlessly,
adding new merchandise instantly. The remain-
der of our sales is through boat shows, events

and dealers.

Fountain sportswear includes dozens of heauti-
fully designed items such as fishing attire, jack-

ets, ladies and kids apparel, polo shirts and tee

shirts. We also sell accessories ranging from
elegant etched-crystal glasses to fluffy beach
towels to silver Fountain logo pendants. In re-
cent years, women have become our most loyal
buyers, so we have also created collections with
more feminine tailoring that include shirts, Capri

pants, and camiscles.

In 2009, Fountain will expand our offerings with
apparel for tournament series such as the South-
ern Kingfish Association and American Striper
Association and creating custom sportswear for
events sponsored by our dealers. We will also add
a full line of Baja products, and we expect robust
sales as Baja has one of the industry's largest,

most active owners’ groups.




KEEPING EVERY FOUNTAIN A FOUNTAIN

Using factory parts from Fountain Powerboats
remains the only true way to maintain the extraor-
dinary appearance, value and performance of our
boats. Owners realize that anything less compro-
mises their investments, so we offer a complete
inventory of original parts and accessories. They
can be ordered directly from the Fountain factory

or through our worldwide network of dealers.

A customer might add more horsepower with a
new engine or drive, update the appearance of

the boat, or completely restore it. Our parts and

accessaries department carries virtually hundreds

of items, including upholstery skins, cockpit kits,
cabin kits with cabinetry and upholstery, custom
and standard dash panels, windshields and spe-

cialty parts.

In 2009, we plan to expand this valuable profit
center by offering parts and accessories through
our web site. Customers will easily be able to or-
der from an online catalog featuring photographs
and detailed descriptions of the products. There
also will be on-line help and search buttons to

facilitate ordering.
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Part |
Item 1. Business.
Background.

Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. {the “Company™), through its wholly owned subsidiary, Fountain Powerboats,
Inc. (the “Subsidiary”), designs, manufactures and sells internationally recognized recreational offshore sport boats, sport
fishing boats and sport cruisers that target a segment of the recreational powerboat market where speed, performance, quality
and safety are the primary purchase criteria. The Company sells its boats and ancillary products through a werldwide network
of 26 domestic and 21 international dealers.

Fountain Powerboats, based upon an innovative, award-winning design, are well branded within the boating
industry. The Company markets the celebrity of its Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and founder, Reginald M.
Fountain Jr., an internationally recognized designer, engineer and builder of high speed powerboats and holder of three world
titles and seven national racing championships.

Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. formed a wholly owned subsidiary, “Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore,
Inc.”, effective July 1, 2007 for the principal purpose of selling boats produced by Fountain Powerboats, lnc., the
manufacturing subsidiary, to retail customers who reside in a territory that can be serviced from the Company’s Washington,
North Carolina location. The manufacturing subsidiary assigned eastern North Carolina, Virginia and South Carolina to the
retail subsidiary as its sales territory. The retail operation will sell pre-owned boats taken in trade on sales of new Fountain
boats and other services to retail customers. A secondary, but very important, objective of the retail operation is to provide
retail sales support and assistance to all dealers in the Fountain Powerboats, Inc. distribution network. The retail operation
will operate out of facilities owned by the Company.

Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. formed a wholly owned subsidiary, “Baja by Fountain, Inc.”, effective May 21,
2008 for the purpose of acquiring certain assets of Baja Marine Corporation from Brunswick Corporation and the rights to
produce some boat models previously built by Baja Marine Corporation. Baja produced high performance sport boats in
lengths from nineteen feet to forty feet with limited overlap with the size of boats manufactured by Fountain Powerboats, [nc.
and with design, technology and amenities being very different. The Baja custorner base has considerably different
demographics than the Fountain customer base thus providing a divergent market. Baja had an 87 dealer distribution
network with approximately 15% of its Fiscal 2007 sales international. Management expects the Baja product line will
complement the Fountain product line and allow the Company to add revenue for the Baja products with minimal additional
overhead.

Products.

Fountain Powerboats

Fountain continuously incorporates new and improved designs in its boats. The Company believes that the best
boats come from combining an intuitive management team with hardcore experience gained by boat racing in offshore
conditions. Each boat is tested in the Pamlico River, located alongside the factory, before it is shipped to its new owner. This
testing is unique to Fountain Powerboats, as most boat manufacturers are not located on or near the water.

Fountain maintains that its boats, with their innovative design and unitized construction, are among the fastest,
smoothest, safest and best-handling boats of their kind. The expansive product line of sport cruisers, sport fishing and sport
boats is based upon a deep V-shaped fiberglass hull for speed and fuel efficiency that uses less horse power, For superb
handling and performance, the boats are designed with a notched transom and pad keel running surface and engineered with
an innovative step-bottom design.

The Company has twenty different models that fall into three categories — express cruisers, sport fishing boats and
sport boats. Initially known for its sport boats, Fountain Powerboats has evolved into a company with a wide variety of boats
for diseriminating boaters.

Fountain Powerboats has a significant share of the high performance sport boat market and offers nine different
sport boat models ranging from the 29" Fever to the 47" Lightning. These V-bottom boats carve turns at all speeds, even
when being propelled at over 100 MPH by twin or triple Mercury 525 engines.

Fountain Powerboats has become well known for its upscale, high performance and elegant Express Cruisers. The
cruiser market had been growing as the populace ages and begins to look not only for speed but also for luxurious amenities
for the entire family. Fountain Powerboats, with its 38" and 48" Express Cruisers, is poised with products to capitalize on the
niche of this market that desires high performance.
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A long established water sport is continuing to grow in popularity — tournament fishing. With the advent of popular
sport fishing television shows and two quality sport fishing competition programs, the American Striper Association
Tournaments and the Southern Kingfish Association Tournaments, the Company has significantly expanded its line of sport
fishing boats, building a competitive edge in this fast growing market.

Fountain’s fish boats are designed for the fishing aficionado who demands speed and superb amenities for his family
and friends. Entering the tournament fishing market in the late 1980°s, and now considered “the boat to beat”, the Company’s
fish boat product line includes nine different models ranging from the 23" Center Console (“CC”) to the 38 Sport Fish
Cruiser outboard. )

Fountain participates in Poker Run events, which is an increasingly popular sporting event that involves large
numbers of recreational boat owners. These events are sponsored by local organizations, generally including one of the
Company’s dealers, and present a great opportunity to showcase the Company’s boats to an affluent audience.

During Fiscal 2008 the Company introduced the following new and upgraded boat models:

e A new 33" sport boat model was introduced as the newest and smallest boat of the Lightning Series complete
with the redesigned Lightning series interior and Mercury 425HP stern drives engines. It will perform at speeds
in excess of 82 MPH;

e  The 33’ sport fish cruiser outboard hull was redesigned to provide that model an even smoother and more stable
ride in all types of water conditions, at alil speeds, and with twin outboard Mercury Verado engines to match the
performance of the 38’ sport fish cruiser outboard;

¢ The 38" express and sport fish cruiser models were adapted to accommodate the newest 38’ hull design that was
developed for the 38" sport fish cruiser outboard to provide those models with the superior performance and
handling that customers are experiencing with this popular ocutboard boat;

® The 48 express cruiser was made available with a twin Cummins diese! engine configuration. This option
reduces the overall cost of the boat and operating costs while maintaining high performance operating speeds.
This option was introduced in answer to demand from the international market but has been popular
domestically as well,

The chart below shows the number of boats completed and shipped during the last three fiscal years by product line.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 20606
SPOTEBORLS covevevevvecseceecseceeec e st is s eesesss bbbt ettt o ss b as et er e . 98 127 167
EXPTESS CIUISEIS ..otiieeiit ettt s ettt et et st st e se e s b e e b b e b b emesse s en e e tenenas 32 3l 42
SPOTt fISHING DOALS ...ectn ettt ee e es et ra st s e s eameaeaneaean 153 168 190
L0411 O N TSSOSO 2 3 |
B | OO U SO U T U USROS 285 329 400

As of June 30, 2008 Fountain Powerboats had a backlog of firm orders for 21 boats, totaling sales of $3.4 million,
all of which are expected to be completed during Fiscal 2009. At June 30, 2007, the sales backlog was 76 boats, totaling
$16.8 million.

Baja

Baja boat models include three product series of high performance sport boats, ranging from 19’ to 40°. All Baja
meodels are butlt on a V-bottom design and are powered with either single or twin Mercruiser stern drive inboard engines.
The suggested retail price of Baja boats have ranged from $25,500 to $300,000.

Baja customers started an owners club as “Team Baja” several years ago. They hold many events throughout the
year at difterent locations in the US. These are very proud and loyal owners; they are one of the reasons that Baja has been
able to build as many as 1200 boats in a single year.

Baja and its customers have been very active in Poker Run events, with Baja maintaining a company sponsored boat
configured and designed specifically for the Poker Run tour. Baja facilitated and supported the Baja Team owners club as
well as other customers on the tour to promote camaraderie. Participation in these events boosted the popularity and sales of
Baja boats.

Baja by Fountain, Inc. acquired the molds and tooling for fifteen Baja models; six models of the “Outlaw™ Series”,
four models of the “Islander Series”, and five models of the “Performance Series”. The Company will produce Baja boats for

3




the 2009 model year, with production and delivery of nine of the models in September/October, 2008. Baja boats will be
built using the same production processes as are used for Fountain boats.

Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore

The Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore, Inc. (Superstore) was formed to establish a factory associated dealership
for the exclusive sales of boats produced by Fountain Powerboats, Inc. It provides Fountain’s retail customers a close
relationship with the support and service of Fountain Powerboats’ factory staffs and facilities. It performs dealership sales
and services in a territory that encompasses the eastern region of North Carolina, Virginia and South Carolina. Thisis a
territory that can be sufficiently served by a dealership located centraily in Washington, North Carolina. The Superstore also
provides sales support and assistance to all dealers in Fountain Powerboats, Inc. distribution network.

The mission of the Superstore is to increase the number of boats produced and sold by Fountain Powerboats, provide
a quality experience for Fountain’s customers when selecting and purchasing a Fountain boat, maintain a professional retail
sales organization that is focused on selling Fountain boats as a model sales program to increase sales of the existing dealer
network, and provide a perpetual, qualified, specialized and proficient retail outlet for the viable Central Atlantic Coast
market for Fountain boats.

The chart below shows the sales of the Superstore for its first year of operation:

Fiscal 2008
Fountain Powerboats boats purchased 43 boats $9,138,276
New Fountain Powerboats sold at retail 33 boats $7,781,455
Trade-in boats sold at retail 8 boats 791,567
New trailers sold at retail 150,322
Other sales (e.g. electronics, service, non-boat trades) 31116
Total sales of Superstore 59,754,460

(Intercompany sales are eliminated in consolidation.)

Research and Development.

Staying ahead of its competition, Fountain’s employees conduct ongoing research and development pertaining to the
design of its boats’ hulls and decks and its small parts production. The Company invested approximately 3800,000 on the
development of new plugs and molds during Fiscal 2008, Over the past three fiscal years, the investments into product
development were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2086
Design, Research & Development ........ocovvnnnirincireenns 3 749,136 $ 757,186 S 780,520
Construction of New Plugs and Molds..........occcnvevicennnnn, 799,918 1,034,366 1,092,994

For fiscal 2009, planned expenses for design, research and development are estimated to be $762,000, and plug and
mold construction expenditures are estimated to be $900,000. Primarily, these expenditures will go to upgrading and
expanding the Baja product line, expanding Fountain express cruisers line and enhancing the Fountain sport fish boats line to
continue to expand the Company’s presence in that profitable and more stable market.

Manufacturing.

Manufacturing capacity of the Company's facility can accommodate 40 to 45 boats in various stages of construction
at any one time. Construction time is approximately three to eight weeks, dependent on the product mix.

At June 30, 2008 the Company had 322 employees, of which 294 employees were direct production or production
support. The Company currently has the capacity to manufacture approximately 300 Fountain Powerboats boats and 500
Baja boats per year.

The manufacturing process is labor intensive and requires seasoned craftsmen. The process for manufacturing the
hull and deck of a Fountain Powerboat is done by hand. Vinylester resins and high quality stitched, bi-directional and quad-
directional fiberglass is hand laid over a foam core in molds designed and constructed by the Company’s engineers and
tooling department. This artisan method creates a composite structure with strong outer and inner skins and a thicker, lighter
core in between, resulting in superior strength and a finer appearance, compared to mechanically blown, chopped fiberglass
used by other manufacturers.




The resin used to bind the composite structure is vinylester, which is stronger, better bonding, blister resistent and
more flexible than the polyester resins used by maost fiberglass boat manufacturers. Decks are bonded to the hull using a
combination of bonding agents, rivets, screws and fiberglass to achieve a strong unitized construction. This manufacturing
process was developed and improved upon as a result of the Company’s many years of racing experience. When a Fountain
Powerboat is traveling at 177 MPH through the water, this manufacturing process provides the speed and safety the
Company’s boats are known for.

As one of the most highly integrated manufacturers in the marine industry, Fountain manufactures many metal,
plexiglass, plastic, and small parts (such as fuel tanks, seat frames, instrument panels, bow rails, brackets, T-tops and
windscreens) to assure that its rigid quality standards are met and, if a design change is needed to improve a boat, it can be
made immediately.

The Company also manufactures all of its upholstery to its own custom specifications and benefits from receiving
these parts just in time for assembly. All other component parts and materials used in the manufacture of the Company’s
boats are readily available from a variety of suppliers at comparable prices exclusive of discounts. The Company purchases
certain supplies and materials from a limited number of suppliers in order to obtain the benefit of volume discounts.

Recreational powerboats must be certified by the manufacturer to meet U.S. Coast Guard specifications. Their safety
is subject to federal regulation under the Boat Safety Act of 1971, as amended, pursuant to which boat manufacturers may be
required to recall products for replacement of parts or components that have demonstrated defects affecting safety. Boats
manufactured for sale in the European Community must meet CE Certification Standards.

Product Warranty.

The Company warrants the boat hull and deck structure against defects in material and workmanship for a period of
six years. Warranty costs, if any, on other components of the boats are generally absorbed by the original component
manufacturer. Warranty costs can vary depending on the size and number of components in the boats sold. The Company
focuses on high quality manufacturing programs and processes, including active monitoring of the quality of components
obtained from suppliers and managing the dealer and customer warranty experience and reimbursements. Our estimated
warranty obligation is based upon the warranty terms, the enforcement of those terms over time, defects, repair costs, and the
volume and mix of boats sold. The estimate of warranty costs is regularly analyzed and is adjusted based on several factors
including the actual claims that occur by model and model year. The following is a table of the Company warranty expense
for fiscal years 2008 and 2007:

Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007
N Sl e uiiiuiiiei ittt et b e bbb a et eat st s et s ab et bt b et s e abs s abs b e e e aneebna b erbeanes $ 68,202,620 § 68,829,987
W AITANEY EXPOIISE .. .o ineieieeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ene e essen e bete b asbetsessebanbebe b sasssenras b 1,037,405 § 1,347,511
Warranty Expense as a % of Sales......coooniiiiinicee, eetebe et eatneatean e eae e eneeneneen 1.5% 2.0%

Sales and Marketing.

The Company sells its Fountain products through a worldwide network of 26 domestic dealers and 21 international
dealers. While most of these dealers are not exclusive, the Company uses discretion in locating new dealers in an effort to
protect the interests of its existing dealer network. Baja had a worldwide network of 87 dealers, and the Company is in the
process of establishing a relationship with dealers from that network who potentially will purchase Baja and potentially
Fountain boats.

The Company employs Sales Representatives who are assigned regional territories. The Sales Representatives
manage the Company’s relationship with dealers in their assigned territories. They support and assist dealers with features
and benefits sales training, retail sales opportunities, inventory selection and stocking, accounts reconciliation and general
communications and support.

The Company engages an agent for sales to international markets. The agent manages the relationship with
international dealers, markets and sells products to dealers, coordinates all international shipments, handles all currency
exchanges, and administers warranty claims with international customers.



The following is a table of sales by geographic area for the last three fiscal years.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
UG SEALES ..eoeririirereecrrsiries s ereens s s s sersesssesssneaspr e eraragestrssasenenses: $ 56,911,647 § 60,011,000 § 70,934,584
Canada, Mexico, Central/South AMETICa ....coveeveveiiii e, 4,176,865 3,689,071 1,849,529
B0 e ettt b e bbb ebs e be st 5,310,545 4,059,120 2,722,920
Middle EaSt.....cooiiiiieiciccc e e st en e et eree, 1,378,907 455,687 2,753,281
F § vz DO STUOS ST — — 965,910
F N T SO OO UUP PR 189,162 300,691 —
AUSHERI ..ottt b st st sae e asetneereeeren, 235,494 314,418 —
TOMAL ..ceve et ee ettt e en e st e e e e nae e e e, $ 68202620 $ 68829987 § 79,226,224

Fountain Powerboats targets a significant portion of revenue for its branding and advertising programs in the United
States of America and internationally. The Company continues to expand its dealer network into Europe, South America and
the Middle East. The Company’s Intemnational sales were $11,290,973 for fiscal 2008 and 38,818,987 for fiscal 2007. The
Company requires payment in full or an irrevocable tetter of credit from a domestic bank before it will ship a boat out of the
United States of America.

In Fiscal 2008, one dealer accounted for 12.5 percent of sales, one dealer accounted for 8.5 percent, one dealer
accounted for 6.9 percent, one dealer accounted for 5.1 percent and one dealer accounted for 5.0 percent. In Fiscal 2007, one
dealer accounted for 13.6 percent of sales, one accounted for 9 percent and four each accounted for 5.0 to 5.5 percent. in
fiscal 2006, one dealer accounted for 10.9 percent of sales, one accounted for 8.5 percent and four each accounted for 5.8 to
6.3 percent.

While the loss of any particultar dealer could have an adverse affect on sales, the Company believes it could find
other dealers within the same geographical area to replace a lost dealer. The Company continues to add new dealers with the
goal of reducing the concentration risk in its distribution channel.

The Company has a strategically located team of sales representatives supporting existing dealer locations and
developing new dealers in targeted locations. The sales team, headed up by the President, is responsible for developing a
dealer organization for sport boats, sport fishing boats and express cruisers. The product line is extremely diverse and
requires specialized sales training and service and support, so the Company’s strategy is to develop individual dealers for
each of its product lines.

Fountain Powerboats does not manufacture to inventory, as its boats are pre-sold to dealers before entering the
preduction line. The Company can ship to dealers on a cash-on-delivery basis or through floor plan financing programs in
which the Company participates on behalf of its dealers. For Fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company has paid the
interest on the floor plan, for a certain period of time, as a sales promotion program.

The dealer’s responsibility is to establish a line of credit with one or more third-party lenders for the purchase of its
showroom inventory. When a dealer purchases a boat utilizing the floor plan arrangement, it draws against its line of credit
and the lender pays the invoice for the boat directly to Fountain Powerboats, typically within five business days. When the
boat is sold to the retail customer, the dealer repays the lender, restoring his credit line. The Company, along with most major
boat manufacturers, will repurchase its boats from a lender who has repossessed them from a dealer, if the lender returns the
boats to Fountain Powerboats in a new or like-new condition. The Company has no material obligation to repurchase boats
from its dealers.

The marketing of boats to retail customers is the responsibility of the dealer, whose efforts are complemented by
Fountain Powerboats’ advertising in boating magazines, participating in boat shows and its Sales staff respoading to and
tracking leads from advertisements, boat shows and internet inquiries. To assist in brand recognition, the Company has
developed racing programs to participate in the major classes of offshore powerboat races in which many of Fountain’s single
and twin engine racing boats continue to hold their respective world speed records. Fountain Powerboats founder and CEO
Reggie Fountain, who has won numerous races in both factory and customer owned boats and has set numerous world speed
records in both, in August 2004 set a V-bottom World Speed Record with a speed of 171.883 MPH in a Fouatain 42°
Lightning.

To enhance brand recognition, Fountain Powerboats sponsors outstanding sport fishermen who own Fountain boats
and fish in tournaments organized by the Southern Kingfish Association (SKA) and the American Striper Association (ASA).
The Company’s SKA and ASA fishing teams are captained by world class anglers who can afford to purchase any boat, but
who choose to own a Fountain Powerboat, The Company supports the ASA tournaments held throughout the Northeast in
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areas ranging from Virginia to Maine, and the SKA tournaments held throughout the South and Southwest, from North
Carolina to Texas. The Fountain team’s winning records have given its sport fishing boats favorable exposure to serious sport
fishermen looking for superior performance.

Competition.

Competition within the powerboat manufacturing industry is intense, The high performance sports, fish and cruiser
boat markets, which comprises only a small segment of all boats manufactured, are signmficant markets in terms of total
dollars spent. The manufacturers who compete with the Company in these market segments include:

Sport Boats
. Formula, a Division of Thunderbird Products Corporation

. Cigarette Racing Team, Inc.

. Donzi, American Marine Holdings

. Outer Limits

. Nordic

. Hustler
Fish Boats

. Contender Boats

. Donzi, American Marine Holdings

. Wellcraft

. Hydrasports

. Grady White

. Triton

. Jupiter

. Yellowfin

. Boston Whaler, a Division of Brunswick Corporation
Cruisers

. Formula, a Division of Thunderbird Products Corporation

) Donzi, American Marine Holdings
. SeaRay, a Division of Brunswick Corporation
. Sunseeker

Baja
. Checkmate
. Chatlenger
. Donzi, American Marine Holdings
. Sonic
. Sunsation
. Velocity

The Company believes that in its market segments buyers select boats based on speed, performance, quality, image
and safety, with style and price being secondary considerations.

Market demographics and industry experts indicate the fish boat market ofters the best growth potential within the
boating industry. Fountain Powerboats continues to expand its family of fish boats to meet the rising demand in this
significant high-growth market. The Company introduced performance improvements to fish boat models in 2008 and plans
to upgrade one of its existing models in 2009.

The Company has experienced strong demand for its higher priced cruisers. This is due in part to a populace that not
only wants speed but requires the additional space to bring along the family. The Company believes that a large number of
current product owners, many of whom have purchased multiple and increasingly larger boats from the Company, provide a
target market for the fast-growing cruiser segment. Sales of this product line strengthened in 2008, as compared to 2007,
particularly for the top of the line model, the 48" Express Cruiser.

Employees.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company had 322 employees, of which eight were executive and management personnel,
Twenty were engaged primarily in administrative positions, such as accounting, human resources, marketing and sales. None
of the Company’s employees are party to a collective bargaining agreement. The Company considers its employee relations
to be excellent. The Company is an equal opportunity employer.




Item 1A. Risk Factors,

Not applicable.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2. Propertics.

The Company’s executive offices and manufacturing facilities are located on 65 acres along the Pamlico River in
Beaufort County, North Carolina. All of the land, buildings and improvements are owned by the Company and were held as
collateral on notes and mortgages payable outstanding at June 30, 2008. (See Note 5 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements contained in Item 8 of this Report). The operating facility contains buildings totaling 237,360 square feet located
on fifteen acres. The buildings consist of the following:

Approximate
Square Footage Principal Use

Building 1 14,020 Executive offices, shipping, receiving, and paint shops.

Building 2 6,400 Final prep.

Building 3 106,070 Lamination, mating, small parts, upholstery, assembly, inventory, cafeteria.
Building 4 14,270 Wood shop, consoles rigging.

Building 5 24,080 Metal fabrication.

Building 6 48,420 Tooling, service and warranty, mold maintenance, sportswear.

Building 7 11,500 Powder coating, storage, maintenance shop.

Building 8 12,600 Cruiser manufacturing.

Total 237,360

Over the last several years there have been significant expenditures for property, plant and equipment, which include
plant additions, a travel lift bay, a boat ramp, and docking facilities along a 600-foot canal leading to the Pamlico River. In
addition, the Company has approximately 200,000 square feet of concrete paving surrounding the buildings and providing
guest or employee parking. The present plant site can accommodate an addition of up to 300,000 square feet of
manufacturing space.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company’s manufacturing operating subsidiary was a defendant in lawsuits arising in the
ordinary course of its business, including eight alleged breach of warranty or product liability suits. In the Company’s
opinion these lawsuits are without merit and, therefore, the Company intends to vigorously defend its interest in such suits.
The Company carries sufficient liability and product lability insurance to cover attorney’s fees and any losses that may occur
from a product liability or breach of contract suit, over and above applicable insurance deductibles. The management of the
Company believes that none of such current proceedings will have a material adverse effect.

The Company’s subsidiary was notified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) that it had
been identified as a potentially responsible party (“PRP”) in the remediation of contamination at a clean up site. The Group
administrator estimated the Company’s share of future remediation cost to be $28,105. The Company is eligible for a de
Minimus Settiement Agreement, which is expected to be finalized in 2009.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.




Part 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities,

The Company’s commion stock, $.01 par value, is listed on the American Stock Exchange (under the symbol
“FPB"™). The following table lists the high and low closing prices for the Company’s common stock as reported on the
American Stock Exchange for each calendar quarter during its fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2008.

Quarter Ending High Low
September 30, 2000....c.ccoiiiii s 4.55 4.00
DecemMbBEr 31, 2006 ....couiiveeeeieeeir e erreeberres e ese et e e eeee e e e st et s it nnr e er e neeas 499 3.63
MAECh 31, 2007 .ot re b e e e ae s an e seeesee et e e ks sibssib s saenansnan s ran e 4.38 3.75
JUNE 30, 2007 (oot ee e en e s a b b i e nre 3.75 2.51
Seplember 30, 2007 ... s 2.88 1.80
DECEMIBEL 31, 2007 oottt it sttt rat s ere s a e s s e e e e e b e e e eoee et R e b s b i s 2.28 b0
MATCH 31, 2008 ....viviesiseeeeeeeeee et e e en ettt s s s es e s ee e e e snaere st et e enter et a g R e 1.93 1.12
JUNE 30, 2008 oot r e 2ot et e et A e bd e e e e b san rana neee 1.89 0.85

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock since it first began operations. [n the
future, any declaration and payment of cash dividends will be subject to the Board of Directors’ evaluation of the Company’s
operating results, financial condition, future growth plans, general business and economic conditions, and other relevant
considerations. Management of the Company expects that, for the foreseeable future, profits generated by the Company will
be retained as additional capital to support the Company’s operations and that the Company will not pay any cash dividends.

On June 30, 2008 there were approximaiely 208 holders of record for the Company’s common stock.

On June 11, 2008, the Company received notice from the American Stock Exchange ("Amex") that it was not in
compliance with one of Amex's standards for the continued listing of the Company's common stock. Specifically, the notice
stated that the Company was not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(iv) of Amex's Company Guide because it had
»...sustained losses which are so substantial in relation to its overall operations or its existing financial resources, or its
financial condition has become so impaired, that it appears questionable, in the opinion of the Exchange, as to whether such
company will be able to continue operations and/or meet its obligations as they mature." As a result, the notice stated that the
Company had become subject to Amex's suspension and delisting procedures,

Amex permitted the Company to submit a plan addressing how it intended to regain compliance with Amex's listing
standards (2 "Plan"). On July 18, 2008, the Company submitted a Plan to Amex that summarized its plans and strategies for
dealing with the issues raised in Amex's notice.

On August 25, 2008, Amex notified the Company that it had made a reasonable demonstration of its ability to regain
compliance and that Amex has accepted the Company's Plan and granted it an extension until December 11, 2008, to regain
compliance with Amex's continued listing standards. During the extension period, the listing of the Company’s common
stock will be continued and the Amex Staff periodically will review our implementation of the strategies described in the
Plan. Failure to make progress consistent with the Plan or to regain compliance with Amex's continued listing standards by
the end of the extension period could result in the initiation of proceedings to delist the Company's common stock from the
American Stock Exchange.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008

Years ended June 30
Operations Statement Data
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Net Sales ..o $ 68202620 $ 68829987 § 79,226,224 § 71,182,069 3 359,296,964
Net Income (1088).......cocovencicirennens (2,199,828) (5,046,286) 2,404 912 756,212 609,087
Basic earnings (loss) per share.......... (.48) (1.05) .50 16 13
Weighted average shares
QUESEANAING ......ocoornrireerieenreeneeas 4,587,193 4,821,987 4,819,275 4,815,188 4,761,460
Diluted eamings {loss) per share...... (.48) (1.05) 49 .15 A3
Diluted weighted average shares
OUSTANAING «oeveieeiieee e 4,587,193 4,821,987 4,903,949 4,890,124 4,825,179
Balance Sheet Data
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Current assets ......oocvvvreeeeieccenens $ 14,302,553 % 13,381,819 § 17,134,786 $ 13,023,588 § 12,460,218
Total assets......occeeieeeririciisrcisininens 37,324,660 33,416,945 37,860,360 33,034,252 30,621,143
Current liabilities..............cc.ccniai 16,804,027 13,725,455 13,232,828 11,062,016 6,782,584
Long term debt........cccoorvnvinnnvireenn 20,428,948 15,969,407 15,228,700 15,433,446 17,869,178
Stockholder’s equity (£} ....ccoooveene 86,857 3,636,359 9,093,699 6,538,790 3,721,726

(1) The Company has not paid any cash dividends since its inception
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Certain statements in Management’s Discussion and Analysis are forward-looking as defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are based on current expectations that are subject to risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from expectations as of the date of this filing.

The Company’s criteria for recording a C.0.D. sale, or payments prior to shipment sale or sale financed through
third-party floor plan arrangements, are that the boat has been completed and that title has passed to the dealer or to the
Government, and that there is no direct commitment to repurchase the boat or to pay floor plan interest beyond the sales
program terms. As described more fully below at “Business Environment”, most of the Company’s shipments to dealers were
financed through floor plan arrangements with third-party lenders pursuant to which the Company is subject, for a limited
time, to repurchase boats repossessed by the third-party lenders if the dealer defaults under his credit arrangement. The
Company has no repurchase liability for the balance of shipments. This is the method of sales recognition believed to be in
use by most boat manufacturers.

At June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, there were no commitments to dealers to pay the interest on floor plan financed
boats in excess of the time period specified in the Company’s written sales program and there were no direct sepurchase
agreements. There were no deferred sales or cost of sales estimated at June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

The Company has a contingent liability to repurchase boats where it participates in the floor plan financing made
available to its dealers by third-party finance companies, aggregating to $22,869,162 and $24,375,708 at June 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively. Sales to participating dealers are approved by the respective finance companies. If a participating dealer
does not satisfy its obligation to the lender and the boat is subsequently repossessed by the lender, then the Company may be
required to repurchase the boat.

Business Environment.

Recreational boating is a discretionary expenditure and many purchasing decisions are influenced by interest rates,
fuel prices, insurance rates, weather, general economic factors, and other socioeconomic and environmental factors.

Consumer confidence has been negatively affected by a number of factors; rising fuel prices, rising cost of goods

and services, home mortgage failures, decline of housing starts, interest rate increases, bank and lending institution failures,
and unemployment increase.
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The overall marine industry began to soften in 2005 for smal! fiberglass boats (30 feet and less) and the downturn
expanded into the larger fiberglass boat segment in 2006. Demand for sport fishing boats and cruisers weakened in 2007.
Sales of all segments of the fiberglass recreational boating market have continued to decline through the second calendar
quarter of 2008. Market analysts are projecting that the industry will not see a significant improvement through 2009.

Overview

The Company’s revenue declined for Fiscal 2007 to approximately $68.8 million from approximately $79.2 million
for Fiscal 2006. This was the result of the general decline in the marine industry that affected the segments of the market in
which the Company’s boats are sold.

The Company’s revenue for Fiscal 2008, at approximately $68.2 million, was essentially the same as for Fiscal
2007. Given the continued decline of the overall recreational fiberglass market during the period of the Company’s Fiscal
2008, maintaining the same level of revenue was a remarkable achievement.

Overall attendance of the 2008 season boat shows was lower than in 2007, which was lower than in 2006. The
Company increased its participation with its dealers at regional and national boat shows with good success. Even though
advertising expenses for Fiscal 2008 were reduced from the 2007 level, advertising was more focused into targeted
campaigns of promotion. Promotional brochures and event schedules were mailed to thousands of potential customers to
coincide with dealers’ special events. Sales activities and promotions with specific goals and objectives were instrumental in
the Company maintaining a constant level of revenue in a declining market.

The Company implemented cost and expense reduction programs in Fiscal 2008 that had positive effects on the
results for Fiscal 2008, such as..
o Utilities conservation program
General insurance expense
Advertising expense
Fish tournament support expense
Offshore racing promotional program and related expenses

The Company’s revenue was $68,202,620 for Fiscal 2008, approximately the same as revenue of $68,829,987 for
Fiscal 2007. Net sales for the sport boat product line declined by 10 percent, fish boat product line sales declined by 5
percent, and the cruiser product line sales increased by 22 percent.

Revenue for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008, ended June 30, 2008, was $20,734,514, as compared to $19,907,661
for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007, an increase of 4 percent. Operating profit for the fourth quarter was $399,619, as
compared to $568,004 operating profit for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007. The lower profit for 2008 was primarily
attributable to an adjustment made to net sales in the fourth quarter of 2007 to remedy the over accrual of a newly established
year end dealer incentive award. This new dealer incentive award was over accrued because the rate of accrual, established
at the beginning of the year, was based upon projected annual dealer sales, the actual volume of which was not known until
the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2007,

No boats were repurchased in Fiscal 2008, from finance companies under contingent repurchase obligations for
dealers failing to meet obligations to those finance companies. Five boats were repurchased in Fiscal 2007, from finance
companies under contingent repurchase obligations for a dealer that failed to meet its obligations to those finance companies,
for a total repurchase amount of $809,347. All five boats were re-sold to other dealers with a total reduction in profit of
$51,394. No boats were repurchased in Fiscal 2006 in connection with floor plan arrangements. At June 30, 2008, the
Company had recorded a $78,787 reserve for losses which may be reasonably expected to be incurred on boat repurchases in
future years. At June 30, 2007 the reserve was $64,124 and at June 30, 2006 the reserve was $15,459.

QOutlook

The fiberglass recreational boat market decline has continued through the retail buying season of 2008. Generally,
marine dealer inventories remain high and retail sales are low, thus dealers may be cautious about increasing their inventories
during the off season months. Market analysts are forecasting that the industry may not see a significant improvement

through 2009,

The Company’s Sales and Marketing staffs will continue a targeted boat show, advertising and promotion campaign
and increase its internet marketing program for the Fountain and Baja product lines.
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The Company is developing production processes for the Baja boat models to be compatible with the Fountain
production processes, and it expects to have most of the models in full production in the second quarter of Fiscal 2009. Baja
dealer inventories are being depleted and they are ready to receive the Baja by Fountain products.

The Company’s retail subsidiary, Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore, Inc., had a very successful first year of
operation in Fiscal 2008 with approximately $9 million in sales, and is expected to be a positive contributor of revenue in
2009.

International sales grew in Fiscal 2008 by 28% and was 17% of total sales for the Company. The international
market has continued to grow while the domestic market has been in a decline. The Company expects international sales to

be a positive source of revenue in 2009.

The Company’s fiscal plan for 2009 is based on revenue of $62 miilion to $65 million. Cost and expense reduction
programs have been implemented to produce positive results at that level of revenue.

Results of Operations.
Net sales for Fiscal 2008 were $68,202,620, approximately the same revenue as compared to net sales of
$68,829,987 for Fiscal 2007. Maintaining the same revenue level during a declining market was primarily the result of

focused sales activities and promotions guided by specific goals and objectives.

Net Sales by product line for the Fiscal years of 2008, 2007 and 2006 are:

Fiscal 2008 % of Fiseal 2007 % of Fiscal 2006 %% of
Net Sales Sales Net Sales Sales Net Sales Sales
Product Line
Sport boats ..o $ 25,086,667 37% § 28,055,276 40% § 31,799,204 40%
Express cruisers .......c.c.oe..... 11,457,756 17% 9,399,064 14% 15,760,240 20%
Sport fishing boats................ 28,169,615 41% 29,629 864 43% 29,194,785 37%
Other ..o, 3.488,582 5% 1,745,783 3% 2,471,995 3%
Net sales total.............. $ 68,202,620 $ 68,829,987 $ 79,226,224

S aaae————————

Gross profit on sales for Fiscal 2008 was $9,402,572, 13.8 % of net sales, as compared to $9,108,088, 13.2 % of net
sales, for Fiscal 2007. Gross profit for Fiscal 2006 was $13,073,800, 16.5 % of net sales. Production efficiency
improvements in Fiscal 2008 were partially offset by increased material costs and low fixed cost absorption. The decrease of
3.3 percentage points from 2006 to 2007 was primarily attributable to production inefficiencies due to lower production
volumes, reduced fixed cost absorption from production cuts and promotional program pricing in the first half of the year.

Operating loss was ($1,101,310) for Fiscal 2008, as compared to a loss of ($2,745,878) in Fiscal 2007 and a profit of
$2,275,355 in Fiscal 2006. The operating loss for Fiscal 2008 was an improvement of (31,644,568), or 60 percent, as
compared to Fiscal 2007, and the improvement was primarily the result of reduced selling expense, Operating loss for Fiscal
2007 was affected by the circumstances outlined above in the gross margin discussion of this report and increased selling
expenses, detailed below.

Net loss in Fiscal 2008 for the Company was ($2,199,828), or (8.48) per share as compared to a net loss of
(35,046,286) or (51.05) per share for Fiscal 2007, of which ($1,283,728) or ($.27) per share was a tax adjustment. This
compares to a net income of $2,404,912 or $.49 per diluted share for Fiscal 2006. The tax adjustment for Fiscal 2007 arose
from the establishment of a valuation allowance to completely offset the Company’s Deferred Tax Assets which was
established in Fiscal 2006 (see Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements).

Depreciation expense was $2,406,502 for Fiscal 2008, $2,313,807 for Fiscal 2007, and $2,020,860 for Fiscal 2006.

Overall selling and general and administrative expense for Fiscal 2008 was $10,503,882, a $1,350,084 reduction
when compared to $11,853,966 for Fiscal 2007. Fiscal 2007 was a $1,055,520 increase from $10,798,445 in Fiscal 2006.

Selling expenses were $6,704,422 for Fiscal 2008, $8,040,083 for Fiscal 2007and $6,765,871 for Fiscal 2006, The
reduction of $1,335,661 in selling expense for Fiscal 2008, as compared to Fiscal 2007, resulted from reductions in all selling
expense categories, except boat shows, with reduction in offshore racing expenses being the most significant. The increase in
selling expense in Fiscal 2007, as compared to Fiscal 2006, was primarily from an increase in advertising expenses, including
an expanded international advertising program, increased salaries and commissions and increased expenses for the
Company’s support of offshore racing and fishing tournament programs.
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Major selling expenses for the past three fiscal years were as follows:

2008 2007 2006

FISRING .o sae e e et s e eas et e e $ 479,233 % 548,693 § 444 328
RACHNE ettt ettt et v e e s e s s st et e et s s ebssasatasais 1,007,269 1,776,198 1,474,270
AGVEIISING «.ovevievevirceiretere ettt crrre e ss e a bt asss st san b besete e s ennsens 1,854,660 2,013,740 1,412,435
Salaries & COMMUSSIONS..........cociiiieeei et eree e e e e enee e e s seeesseesaeeas 1,168,435 1,345,709 1,098,662
BOoat ShoWS. ..o er ettt eae e 888,511 691,633 526,381
Dealer SUPPOTL....ccovieviiiesirreec e ceeeve e e e e esesessnse s s e s b sa e snbane 166,950 456,802 550,138
Other Selling eXPenses ....... .o iiveieeeen e sne e ere e 1,139,364 1,207,308 1,259,657

TOtAL ..t e $ 6704422 § 8,040,083 § 6,765,871

General and administrative expenses include the executive, finance, human resources, information technology, legal
and administrative operating expenses of the Company. These expenses were $3,799,460 for Fiscal 2008, $3,813,883 for
Fiscal 2007, and $4,032,574 for Fiscal 2006. The decrease in administrative expenses for 2007 was primarily attributable to
reduced legal expenses.

Interest expense net of amounts capitalized was $976,853 for Fiscal 2008, $966,784 for Fiscal 2007, and $1,132,584
for Fiscal 2006. Interest expense decreased in Fiscal 2007 due to Fiscal 2006 having an expense of $229,801 of capitalized
loan costs from the previous Bank of America loan when it was refinanced by the new $16,500,000 loan from Regions Bank,

Current tax provision is $0 for the year ending June 30, 2008, 1,283,728 for the year ending June 30, 2007, and
($1,283,746) for the year ending June 30, 2006. The current tax provision of $0 for Fiscal 2008 is the natural consequence of
the net loss incurred by the Company. Deferred tax (benefit)/provision is ($790,589) for the year ended June 30, 2008,
($1,417,122) for the year ended June 30, 2007 and $460,258 for the year ended June 30, 2006. Deferred taxes arise from
temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting regarding the recognition of certain items.

As of June 30, 2008 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $3,491,439 that were fully offset by a valuation
allowance because, as of that date, it was management’s conclusion that there continued to be doubt as to whether those
deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax assets principally relate to the
potential future benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been generated during the years ended
June 30, 2002, 2007 and 2008 when the Company generated substantial net losses. During the year ended June 30, 2008 the
Company performed an evaluation, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes, of the likelihood of realization of its deferred tax assets. The evaluation resulted in the continued application
of a valuation allowance.

The Company has available federal and state operating loss carry forwards at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 of
approximately $9,616,438 and $9,085,379, respectively, which expire at various dates through 2028. The ultimate realization
of the benefits from the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the Company’s future earnings, the future tax laws in effect,
and other unknown factors; all of which are uncertain. In recent years the Company elected to provide for a tax asset
valuation allowance of $3,491,439 at June 30, 2008, $2,700,850 at June 30, 2007, and $0 at June 30, 2006.

Liquidity and Financial Resources.

As disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the cash balance decreased by $934,113
during the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2008. By comparison, during the previous Fiscal Year the cash balance decreased
$2,095,169.

Cash used by operations was $1,158,962 in Fiscal 2008 and resulted primarily from:

® The net loss of $2,199,828 incurred is the most significant use of cash and is discussed elsewhere in this
document,

Non-cash provisions adjustments, including depreciation expense of $2,406,502, added back $1,971,132.

®  Decreases in Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets provided $161,257. Increases in Accounts Payable and
Accrued Expenses provided $2,116,721.

® Increases in the asset accounts of Accounts Receivable and Inventories used $1,910,440. Decreases in the
liability accounts of Dealer Incentives and Customer Deposits used $1,297,804,
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Cash used for investing activities during Fiscal 2008 was $5,295,527 and resulted primarily from:

e  Asistypically the case, the largest investment made was in creation of plugs and molds. Plugs are wooden
forms constructed for the purpose of creating molds. Molds are used to replicate kulls, decks and various
other fiberglass parts for boats. $799,198 was invested in plugs and molds for Fountain boats during Fiscal
2008. The Company also acquired molds and tooling for certain models of Baja boats at a total value of
$4,000,000.

e $501,309 was spent on property, plant and equipment.

Financing activities provided $5,295,527 during Fiscal 2008.

+ Boats in inventory for the retail subsidiary were financed on the “Floor Plan” for $3,075,606. (See Note 5,
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements),

e  The Company borrowed $4,000,000 from Brunswick Corporation under a promissory note to acquire
certain assets of Baja Marine Corporation.

e  The Company repaid $799,333 that had been borrowed under the “Credit Facility” (See Note 5, in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements),

e The Company borrowed $1,400,000 of the Cash Surrender Value of the Key Man Life Insurance Policies it
owns on the life of the Company’s founder, Chairman and CEO.

e The Company repaid $1,240,297 of the principal of the “Loan” as per the terms of that loan (see Note 5, in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

s  The Company purchased 453,091 shares of its stock for $870,475 as Treasury Stock.

Management is of the opinion that cash flows will be sufficient to satisfy its current and future liquidity demands
because Management has realigned operating costs and expenses for the reduced level of production and returned the
Company to profitability in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008 and is expecting to continue to operate profitably through Fiscal
2009.

Effects of Inflation.

The Company has not been materially affected by the inflation of recent years. Materials that are petroleum-based
(e.g. resin, gel coat, foam) have been subject to price increases, and fuel surcharges have increased freight costs. The
Company has been able to minimize the effect of material price increases by negotiating favorable purchase agreements with
suppliers, using alternative, less costly materials, by finding less costly sources for materials and increasing selling prices of
its products to recover the cost increases.

The Company’s products are targeted at the segment of the powerboat market where retail purchasers are generally
less significantly affected by price or other economic conditions. Consequently, management believes that the impact of
inflation on sales and the results of operations will not be material.

Contractual Obligations.

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s contractual cash obligations as of June 30, 2008:

Paymcnts due by period

Less than Over
Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years

(In thousands)
Contractual Obligations:

Long-term debt, including current maturities.................. $ 13,125 % 810 $ 12,315 — _
Interest payments on long-term debt ... 1,076 879 197 — —
Floor Plan finanging agreement ........cccoceeveeimnnnniicniens 3,076 3,076 — — —
Operating lease obligations ...........cccocvivviiiiiiin, 376 145 207 24 —

Total contractual obligations ..........cccceeecececvee.. $ 17,653 8 4910 § 12,719 § 24 —

The Company has agreements with Mercury Marine, a division of Brunswick Corporation, that the Company will
purchase from Mercury all of the Company’s requirements for marine engines and other power components that Mercury
manufactures for Fountain and Baja boat production. The term of this agreement is through June 30, 2020.

Ofi-Balance Sheet Arrangements,

Guarantees. Based on historical experience and current facts and circumstances, and in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others — An Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57,
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and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34,” the Company has reserves to cover potential losses associated with
guarantees and repurchase obligations. Historical cash requirements and losses associated with these obligations have not
been significant. See Note 8, Commitments and Coentingencies, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for a
description of these arrangements.

Environmental Regulation.

The Company does not believe that compliance with federal, state, and local environmental laws will have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s competitive position.

Critical Accounting Policies.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amount of reported assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
revenues and expenses during the periods reported. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The Company discussed
the development and selection of the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and
believes the following are the most critical accounting policies that could have an effect on the Company’s reported results.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Incentives. The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from the sale of boats.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the contracted terms of the sale, upon completion and when legal title and all other
incidents of ownership have passed to dealers or the Government, and the ability to collect is assured. Revenue is also
derived from the sale of boats to retail customers through the Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore, Inc. subsidiary; revenue
is recognized when the Company has a signed contract with the customer and has received payment. The Company offers
discounts and sales incentives. The estimated liability for sales incentives is recorded at the later of the time of program
communication to the customer or at the time of sale in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 01-9,
“Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of a Vendor’s Products)” and EITF
No. 00-22, “Accounting for Points and Certain Other Time-Based or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Qffers, and Offers for
Free Products or Services to be Delivered in the Future.” The liability is estimated based on the costs for the incentive
program, the planned duration of the program and historical experience. If actual costs are different from estimated costs, the
recorded value of the liability would be adjusted.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. The Company records an allowance for uncollectible trade receivables based
upon currently known bad debit risks and provides reserves based on past loss history, customer payment practices and
economic conditions. Actual collection experience may differ from the current estimate of reserves. Changes to the allowance
for doubtful accounts may be required if a future event or other circumstance results in a change in the estimate of the
ultimate ability to collect a specific account or invoice.

Reserve for Obsolete Inventories. The Company records a reserve for obsolete inventories in order to ensure
inventories are carried at the lower of cost or fair market value. Fair market value can be affected by assumptions about
market demand and conditions, historical usage rates, model changes and new product introductions. 1f model changes or
new product introductions create more or less than favorable market conditions, the reserve for obsolete inventories may need
to be adjusted. Refer to Note 1, Nature of the Business and Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion on the basis of accounting for inventories.

Warranty Reserves, The Company records a liability for standard product warranties. The liability is recorded using
historical warranty experience to estimate projected warranty costs. If necessary, the Company adjusts its liability for specific
warranty matters when they become known and are reasonably estimable. The Company’s warranty reserves are affected by
product failure rates and material usage and labor costs incurred in correcting a product failure. If these estimated costs differ
from actual product failure rates, and actual material usage and labor costs, a revision to the warranty reserve would be
required.

income Taxes. Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax effects of temporary differences between financial
and income tax reporting using tax rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. The Company
estimates its probable tax obligations based on historical experience and current tax laws and litigation. The judgmenis made
at any point in time may change based on the outcome of tax audits and seulements of tax litigation, as well as changes due
to new tax laws and regulations and the Company’s interpretations of those laws and regulations. These factors may cause the
tax rate for the Company to increase or decrease. As of June 30, 2008 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $3,491,439
that were fully offset by a valuation allowance because, as of that date, it was management’s conclusion that there continued
to be doubt as to whether those deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax
assets principally related to the potential future benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been
generated during the years ended June 30, 2002, June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2008 when the Company generated substantial
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net losses. During the year ended June 30, 2007 the Company performed an evaluation, in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, of the likelihood of realization of its deferred tax
assets. The evaluation resulted in the application of a valuation allowance.

The Company has available federal and state operating loss carry forwards at June 30, 2008 of approximately
$9,782,000 and $9,252,451, respectively, which expire at various dates through 2028.

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of “Safe Harbor” Under the Private Securities Reform Act of 1995,

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. Forward-looking statements are statements concerning our plans, strategies, economic performance and trends,
projections of results of specific activities or investments, expectations or beliefs about future events or results, and other
statements that are not descriptions of historical facts, and they may include words such as “expect”, “anticipate”, “plan”,
“intend”, “believe”, “may”, “should”, “‘could” or “‘estimate”, or similar terms or the negative of these terms, or other
statements concerning opinions or judgments of our management about future events. These statements involve certain risks
and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from our historical results or expectations expressed or

implied by the statements as of the date of this filing.

The potential risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: our ability to fully implement plans and
strategies 1o restore the Company’s profitable operations or in the Plan that, as previously reported, we submitted to the
American Stock Exchange to regain compliance with requirements for the continued listing of the Company’s common
stock; delays and unexpected costs for beginning construction of Baja boats; higher than expected costs to build boats;
defects in acquired assets; lower than expected future market demand for Baja and Fountain boats; the volatile and
competitive nature of the industry; the level of market interest rates; changes in general economic conditions and in the
marine industry; and changes in domestic and international market conditions, foreign exchange rates and pressures on
lenders related to current and future problems in credit markets. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements in this report are reasonable, they represent management’s judgment only as of the date they are
made. Caution should be taken not to place undue reliance on the Company’s forward-looking statements, because we
cannot guarantee future results, events, levels of activity, performance or achievements. The Company undertakes no
obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary
statements in this paragraph. Further information on the factors and risks that could affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations are discussed in reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission which are available at
{(http://www.sec.gov).

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not applicable.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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REGORY &
SSOCIATES, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
2812 SOUTH 2750 EAST ¢ SALT LAKE C1TY, UTAH 84109
(801) 277-2763 PHONE = (801) 277-6509 FAX

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
Fountain Powerboats Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Washington, NC 27889

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Fountain Powerboats Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
June 30, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended
June 30, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule [] valuation and qualifying accounts as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2008. These financial statements and schedule II are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule IT based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal controls over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal controls over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall! financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the consolidated financial statements audited by us present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Fountain Powerboats Industries, Inc, and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2008 and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2008, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule Il as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2008, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has current liabilities in excess of
current assets, recent losses from operations, negative cash flows from operating activities, and has significant debt compared
to the underlying equity. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
Management's plans in regards to these matters are also described in Note 15. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

S/ Gregory & Associates, LLC

September 26, 2008
Salt Lake City, Utah
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Certified Public Accountants and Advisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.
Washington, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and subsidiary (the
“Company”) as of June 30, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders” equity, cash flows and
the schedule of valuation and qualifying accounts for each of the years in the two-year period ended June 30, 2007, These
consolidated financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our pesponsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing ap opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and subsidiary at June 30, 2007 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended June 30, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United $States of America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when
considered in relation to the 2007 and 2006 basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

Greenville, North Carolina
September 26, 2007
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007
ASSETS
2008 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equIvalENtS .. ......cooeeiierere e ee s S 1,445270 % 2,379,383
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE, MET ...oviiiciiceeecvieverere s cr e e rrrn s sb e s s st tesebe e s sbmeesasbaeeenseee 4,283,791 3,688,986
INIVEINEOTIES, MEL. . uiiieiieieeiiieitiieeeetriresreererere e s s e s tesses st s saessassanssaressbesbasaaesbsasrenneere 7,942,384 6,645,213
Prepaid BXPENSES . ..o e 631,108 668,237
DEferred tAX @SSLS ....cviveece i ee et esrt s e e ettt bt er et e et sassaerrenes — —
TOTAl CUITERE ASSEIS .ot e ee e eeevareeaeeeeearsenssasassansesasesroneeins 14,302,553 13,381,819
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ...ttt ev s srssaen e 54,777,765 49,533,443
Less: Accumulated depreciation ..........coeoveiverieerermrsrrreenesss i sesne sresesesseseses e (35,455,637) (33,104,217)
‘ 19,322,128 16,429,226
CASH SURRENDER VALUE LIFE INSURANCE, NET.......ooiooieee e eeeceeiea 3,374,413 2,951,010
OTHER ASSETS.....c oottt ettt ettt eta e eb et ebe et e et aensse s eseaete e teen e s s msansenmseneasseatean 325,566 654,890
TOTAL ASSETS et re s e st rs st st ers b sr s er s sbe et she bbb sessmeneenenan $ 37324660 § 33,416,945
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt..........ooir e $ 809,738 § 759,290
Notes payable = floor plan ... 3,075,606 799,333
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ....oviiiiitiseesie et etseeesss et e st e e tass ettt re s e be e e seemeneenes 4,791,853 2,846,303
ACCTUCH EXDEIISES ..\evvivvsiieessvsiseeseemeeseeeieaseaceaseancee e s sarsestasasasesseasessssses srssbesssrarsssssmsssancas 1,264,079 1,092,908
DI aALET INICEIMEIVES 1eeevveeeseerssssesssseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeesetneeesaasesssasasesssasnrerasarersssnsessssssessaseeeeeans 5,618,766 6,342,467
CUSLOMET ABPOSIES ...evvivvieiieiciii e eeemrrirta b s et eaessesss s eesssseestssessbesassbassaasbaseasaraesnsrnterarns 304,999 879,102
Allowance for floor plan boat repurchases.........ccoceiiinviii e, 78,787 64,124
WAITANLY TESEIVE 1..veeeeieeeeceeeeese ettt ettt st b et em et eene et ee e ease s e eeseerseseeesessenssssenterns 860,199 941,928
Total Current LIabilities ...oovviiiiio et eemrne s snes 16,804,027 13,725,455
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES ..ottt ee et 4,828 4,828
LONG-TERM DEBT, less CUrtent POrtion.....cccoooieeeeireeinesieieie s csesssessessessssessssnsesesnens 20,428,948 15,969,407
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY ..ottt rare e s te st e cns e s s e enseaseanne s — 80,896
TOLA]l LIADITEIES. . .oocviiviiiviieersniss i ee e et sttt et sa s e bbbt e s reeaaeantanasanes 37,237,803 29,780,586
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES fNOTE 8}
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 4,844,275 shares
issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2008 and 4,844,275 as of June 30, 2007....... 48.442 48,442
Additional paid-in Capital ..o e e 10,574,753 10,574,753
AccUMUIALEd AEFICIT .....vvivviciiiisi e bbbt s et st b et sbssbsssrerree e (9,204,829) {7,005,001)
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 483,091 and 15,000 shares as of June 30, 2008 and
2007 reSPECHVELY ..ottt ent e {981,223) (110,748)
Accumulated other comprehensive income from interest rate SWap ........coccoeueeerrrenn. (350,286) 128,913
Total S1oCKhOLlAers” EqUiL oo ivieierieiiiesieiecrisissssereinssssseses e rreesssessesiesessessenenns 86,857 3,636,359
Total Liabilities and Stockholders” EQUItY ...........ccooveiiieeiie e $ 373240660 § 33,416,945

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

2008 2007 2006

NET SALES ..ottt stieressees s srer e sre s v sasas e et ettt st et e e nneerennenneeseenes $ 68202620 § 68,829987 $ 79,226,224
COST OF SALES . ..ottt et tsatstassss s st ss e as e s te e e tesnerseanesn s vansanen 58,800,048 59,721,899 66,152,424
GIOSS PO ittt st ses s st s s st e e s esseesmeessaansaessesnassaasaesebesstas 9,402,572 9,108,088 13,073,800
EXPENSES
SElINE EXPENISE ..oiiieeectereriereii et bbb 6,704,422 8,040,083 6,765,871
General 2nd AdMINISIEAIVE c.o..vvvveivcerecererrtrsiieeeniesaeeeneessreeeeeesreesseesasasssesses 3,799,460 3,813,883 4,032,574
TOAl EXPENSE .cvevirereeririirecrcrerererasnessece e e oo seebas st bbb san e b s 10,503,882 11,833,966 10,798,445
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME ..ot tenn e nneees (1,101,310) (2,745 .878) 2,275,355
Other (INCOME) EXPENSE ...oooiii ettt s re s 125,593 49,855 9,944
IRLEEESt EXPRISE......veverirreee ettt sttt st 976,853 966,784 1,132,584
(Gain) loss on disposal 0f ASSEIS .. ..crverrcririrrrc it (3,928) 41 11,661
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE ..ot 1,098,518 1,016,680 1,154,189
(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ... (2,199,828) (3,762,558) 1,121,166
TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT)... oottt - 1,283,728 (1,283,746)
NET (LOSS) INCOME .......cooiiiiiiieeienee et sanss e erees $ (2,199,828) § (5,046,286) § 2404912
BASIC (LOSSY EARNINGS PER SHARE. ..., b (48) § (1.05) 50
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING .................. 4,587,193 4,821,987 4,819,275
DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE... s 3 (48) § (1.05) % 49
DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING 4,587,193 4,821,987 4,903,949
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net (1088) INCOME...c.cueirreecceeeecrc et e $ (2,199,828) § (5,046,286) $ 2,404912

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative inSETUMENIS.............ooimieveerciinneinnnees {479,199) (98,811) 149,997
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME $ (2,679,027) § (5,145097) & 2,554.909

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FROM JUNE 30, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2008

Common Stock Additional Accumulated Treasury Stock Total
Paid in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital {Deficit) Income Shares Amount Equity

BALANCE, June 30, 2005

......... 4,834,275 $ 48342 § 10,558,853 $ (4,035384) $ 77,727 (15,000) $ (110,748) 6,538,790
Other comprehensive

income, net of taxes of

$142,861 ...... — — — —_ 149,997 — — 149,997
Net income for the year

ended June 30, 2000 — — — 2,404,912 — — — 2,404,912
BALANCE, June 30 2006 4,834 275 48,342 10,558,853 (1,630,472) 227,724 (15,000) (110,748) 9,093,699
[ssuance of common stock

upon exercise of options

10,000 100 15,900 — — — — 16,000
Other comprehensive loss,

net of taxes of $(61,965)

— — — _ (98.811) — — (98,811)
Net loss for the year ended

June 30, 2007 _— — — (3,046,286) — — — (5,046,286)
Adjustment from adoption

of SAB 108 . — — — (328,243) — — — (328,243}
BALANCE, June 30 2007 4,844,275 48.442 10,574,753 (7,005,001) 128,913 (15,000} (110,748) 3,636,359
Purchased common stock

as Treasury Shares — — — — — (468,091) (870,475) (870,475)
Other comprehensive loss,

net of taxes of $80,896 — —_ — — (479,199) — — (479,199)
Net loss for the year ended

June 30, 2008 — — — (2,199,828) — — — (2,199,828)
BALANCE, June 30 2008 4,844 275 $ 48442 § 10,574,753 $ (9,204,829) $ (350,286) (483,091) $ (981,223 § 86,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

2008

2007

2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INEL(L0SS) INCOIMIE ..ottt ettt s e e ssss s srbes e sas b e b bbb e besbeabasna e sasassenrass $ (2,199,828)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided (used) by operating

activities:

$ (5,046,286)

S 2,404912

Inventory valuation adjuStment ... ...t 72,117 68,071 42,060
DEPreciation EXPENISE. ... ..vcveerererrrrrecrrsessereresessesestreresrersersenisesreseresesresasreassossarseseecas 2,406,502 2,313,807 2,020,860
Net increase in cash surrender value of life insurance.........ccccocveeieciecn v (423,403) (398,328) (373,064)
Deferred loan costs eXpensed ..o e — — 229,801
Gain on termination of INTETESt FALE SWAP .......cocoi ittt e eeees — — (84,524)
(Gain) loss on disposal Of €QUIPIMENT ... e (3,878) 41 11,661
Bad debt XPENSE ....cveererreriririiiacsiisne s i e et e e e s e ae st st asaes 18,463 19,825 83,546
Amortization of deferred [08N COSIS......ociiiiiiii et srs s resar s srens 40,514 36,002 43,323
Deferred income tax expense (benefit).....ccoenniiniiiiininiiiie e _— 1,283,728 (1,283,746)
Change in assets and labilities: . ......c.coooveinon e
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE ..ot (613,268) (302,943) (1,294,057)
R (1T T = RS (1,369,289) 245,904 (528,231)
Prepaid EXPenSes . ..o e en e 37,129 180,922 (507,171)
OHIET ASSELS .evviniiiiiisi s e e e e s e er e s st te s te e e st e b e s te e esne e s snenrerans 124,128 213,369 (212,617)
Accounts payable ... 1,945,550 (1,014,758) 16,959
ACCTUEA EXPEIISES ... ovieieeeeieeiiee et e st et e eeeeeses e seeesaestesseseencesee e stene e e emeesmensens 171,171 {160,806} 174,156
DT ITICEIEIVES .. 1 vvtieteversiriairnitrrrisereesreinersasesssaresnsesetstansensass areesseasarsesssssnrns (723,701) (24,762) 2,664,491
CUSTOMET AEBPOSILS ....oceeeeiiee it e e s s (574,103) 488,078 (468,855)
WRITAINLY TESEIVE ....oivireeeeeiieceirsensaessessmessmesreesresesassresssrs srrssnesenesenesessresareensesnnens (81,729 (18,672) (107,643)
Allowance for boat repurchases ...t es e 14,663 48,665 (59,541)
Other long-term Habilities ... — 4,828 —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating ACHIVITIES ........ccovviiiieeiniiiieienereeee e (1,158,962 (2,063,315) 2,772,320
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale 0f eQUIPMENt .........oociiiiii e s 5,700 3,375 3,883
Investment in molds and related plugs ... (4,799,918) (1,045,057) (1,092,994)
Purchase of property, plant and eqUIPIMENT ... e (501,309) (593,518) (872,897)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities... (5,295,527) (1,635,200) (1,962,008)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from D01eS Payable. ..o e s e sasaesnssascesesresesseenences 3,075,606 4,045,863 —
Proceeds from long term debt ... 5,400,000 1,500,000 16,545,878
Payments of notes payable ... (799,333) (3,246,530) —
Payments of long term debl.. ... (1,240,297) (711,987) (16,799,378)
Proceeds from termination of interest rate SWap ..o — _— 84,524
Payments of deferred 10an COSIS ... s (45,125) — (180,009)
Proceeds from exercise 0f SLOCK OPLONS ..o — 16,000 —
Payments to purchase Treasury SOCK ... (870,475) — —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing ACHVIHES ........ccooeveiieeeieieice e 5,520,376 1,603,346 (348,985)
Net (decrease) increase in cash.and cash equivalents.................cooiiiniciciin (934,113) (2,005,169) 461,327
Beginning cash and cash equivalents balance ... 2,379,383 4,474,552 4,013,225
Ending cash and cash equivalents balance ... $ 1445270 § 2,379,383 $ 4,474,552
[continued]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [CONTINUED]
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

2008 2007 2046

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Interest to unrelated parties, net of amounts capitalized................ § 1,018,686 § 1340969 § 1,417,874
[NCOIME LAXES .. vveiviieeeiriteisirrereerorrereresasssreresessetrsssrsressssnssssnsasannes — — —

Supplemental Schedule of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap, net of tax...........cocooeeeeee. $ (479199 §  (98811) § 149,997

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

Note 1. Nature of the Business and Significant Accounting Policies.

Nature of the Business: Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company) manufacture and sell
high-performance sport boats, sport cruisers, sport fishing boats, and custom offshore racing boats. These boats are sold
worldwide to a network of 26 domestic and 21 international dealers. The Company’s offices and manufacturing facilities are
located in Washington, North Carolina, and the Company has been in business since 1979. The Company employs 322
people.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fountain Powerboat
Industries, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Fountain Powerboats, Inc., Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore, Inc. and
Baja by Fountain, Inc. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year: The Company’s fiscal year-end is June 30th, which is its natural business year-end.

Accounting Estimates: The preparation of financial statemnents in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimated
by management. These estimates affect:

. The reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
. The disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and
. The reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.

Estimates in these consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to:

. Allowances for doubtful accounts;

. Inventory obsolescence reserves;

. Reserves for dealer incentives and allowances;

. Warranty related reserves;

. Reserve for allowances for floor plan boat repurchases;
. Losses on litigation and other contingencies;

. Environmental liability reserves;

. Insurance reserves;

. Income tax reserves.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the
Company had $1,445,270 and $2,379,383 respectively, held in cash. The portion of those balances in excess of the amount
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation at June 30, 2008 was §1,345,270.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts Receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring
payment within 7 days from the invoice date for boat sales and within 30 days for all other sales. The carrying amount of
accounts receivable is reduced by an allowance that reflects management’s best estimate of the amounts that will not be
collected. Management reviews each accounts receivable balance that exceeds 90 days from the invoice date and based on an
assessment of the current creditworthiness, estimates the portion, if any, of the balance that will not be collected.
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Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method
(See Note 3). The Company records a reserve for obsolete inventories in order to ensure inventories are carried at the lower
of cost or fair market value. Fair market value can be affected by assumptions about market demand and conditions, historical
usage rates, model changes and new product introductions. If model changes or new product introductions create more or less
than favorable market conditions, the reserve for obsolete inventories may need to be adjusted.

Property, Plant, and Equipment and Depreciation: Property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost.
Depreciation on property, plant, and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method and is based upon the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Company periodically evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate
the remaining estimated useful lives of its long-lived assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such assets
may not be recoverable and need to be impaired. (See Note 4)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments;: Management estimates of the carrying value of financial instruments on the
consolidated financial statements approximate fair values. The carrying values of the Company’s short term financial
instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and debt approximate their fair values because of the
short maturity of these instruments and the variability of the associated interest rates.

Dealer Incentive Accruals: The Company has established sales programs to pay service and/or other awards to
dealers for boat deliveries into their market territory for which they will perform service or based upon sales of boats from
their locations. These programs are based in part on the model of the boat sold, a factor for the dealer’s service performance
rating, the dollar value of the sale and other factors, including total sales volume to dealers. The Company has accrued dealer
incentives of $3.618,766 and $6,342,467 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Dealer incentive accruals are recorded as a
reduction to net sales. These amounts also include an accrual for dealer interest as discussed in Note 8, “Commitments and
Contingencies”.

Allowance for Floor Plan Boat Repurchases: The Company provides an allowance for boats financed by dealers
under floor plan finance arrangements that may be repurchased from finance companies under certain circumstances where
the Company has a repurchase agreement with the lender. The amount of the allowance is determined based upon the current
financial status of the Company’s dealers. The Company has accrued allowance for boat repurchases of $78,787 and
$64,124 at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 respectively.

Revenue Recognition: The Company generally sells boats only to authorized dealers and to the U.S. Government.
A sale is recorded when legal title and all other incidents of ownership have passed to the dealer or to the Government. Prior
to the sale to the dealer or the Government, the Company must have received a signed Sales Order Acknowledgement from
the dealer or the Government specifying the terms of the sale, including the sales price. All boat sales are Cash on Delivery
basis, or with prior approval of the buyer’s third party commercial lender, thus assuring the ability to collect. Revenue is also
derived from the sale of boats to retail customers through the Fountain Dealers’ Factory Superstore, Inc. subsidiary; revenue
is recognized when the Company has a signed contract with the customer and has received payment.

In addition to other dealer incentives, the Company offers a sales incentive plan whereby floor plan interest is paid
by the Company up to six months (180 days) or until the boat is sold by the dealer. Each month the Company calculates an
amount equal to the estimated potential floor plan interest payment for the remainder of the 180 day period beginning on the
invoice date for each boat still in floor plan inventory. The sum of these individual calculations is accrued as a liability and
recorded as a selling expense. (See Note 8) As the number of boats and the time remaining in the free floor plan interest
period varies from month to month, the variation is reflected in floor plan interest expense.

Income Taxes: The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (See Note 7).

Advertising Cost: Cost incurred in connection with advertising and promotion of the Company’s products is
expensed as incurred. Such costs amounted to $1,854,660, $2,013,740 and $1,412,435 for the years ended 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Earnings(Loss) Per Share: The Company accounts for earnings(loss} per share in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128 “Earnings Per Share,” which requires the Company to present basic and
diluted earnings per share. The computation of basic eamings(loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the periods presented. The computation of diluted earnings per shares is based on the weighted
average number of outstanding common shares during the year plus, when their effect is dilutive, additional shares assuming
the exercise of certain vested and non-vested stock options and warrants, reduced by the number of shares which could be
purchased from the proceeds (See Note 12).
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Warranties: The Company warrants the entire deck and hull, including its supporting bulkhead and stringer system,
against defects in materials and workmanship for a period of six years. The Company has accrued a reserve for these
anticipated future warranty costs.

Cash Surrender Value of life insurance policies: - At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company owns six life
insurance policies on Reginald M. Fountain, Jr., the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for a total of
$8,429,910 and $8,091,411 in coverage and $3,374,413 and $2,951,010 in cash value, respectively. At June 30, 2008 and
2007 the Company has borrowed 32,900,000 and $1,500,000 respectively against the policies, which is shown in long term
debt on the consolidated balance sheet.

Research and Development: The Company expenses the costs of research and development for new products and
components as the costs are incurred. Research and development costs are included in the cost of sales and amounted to
$749,136 for Fiscal 2008, $757.186 for Fiscal 2007, and $780,520 for Fiscal 2006.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company uses derivative financial instruments for the pwrpose of reducing
its exposure to adverse fluctuations in interest rates. While these hedging instruments are subject to fluctuations in value,
such fluctuations are generally offset by the value of the underlying exposures being hedged. The Company has determined
that the hedges’ ineffectiveness is not material and accounts for these derivative financial instruments as an effective cash
flow hedge under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The Company is not a party to leveraged derivatives and does not hold or
issue financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The Company utilizes an interest rate swap agreement to hedge exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates.
Under United States GAAP, an interest rate swap agreement is considered a derivative financial instrument. Due to the
nature of the derivative and the intended use by the Company, the derivative qualifies as a Cash Flow Hedge. As such, SFAS
No. 133 requires that the value of the derivative be “marked-to-market” periodically and any change in the market value of
the swap be reflected in the financial statements of the Company. The market value of the derivative is calculated as of the
last day of the period and any change since the end of the previous period is reflected, net of tax, as an adjustment to
Stockholders’ Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Recently Enacted Accounting Standards;
In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value

Measurements™ (SFAS 157). FAS 157 enhances existing guidance for measuring assets and liabilities using fair value. Prior
to the issuance of FAS 157, guidance for applying fair value was incorporated in several accounting pronouncements. FAS
157 provides a single definition of fair value, together with a framework for measuring it, and requires additional disclosure
about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. FAS 157 also emphasizes that fair value is a market-based
measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarchy with the highest priority being quoted
prices in active markets. Under FAS 157, fair value measurements are disclosed by tevel within that hierarchy. While FAS
157 does not add any new fair value measurements, it does change current practice. Changes to practice include: (1) a
requirement for an entity to include its own credit standing in the measurement of its liabilities; (2) a modification of the
transaction price presumption; (3) a prohibition on the use of block discounts when valuing large blocks of securities for
broker-dealers and investment companies; and (4) a requirement to adjust the value of restricted stock for the effect of the
restriction even if the restriction lapses within one year. FAS 137 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has not determined the
impact of adopting FAS 157 on its consolidated financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabiiities”, (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 allows entities to measure financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that
are not currently required to be measured at fair value, Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option
has been elected must be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option can be applied
instrument by instrument, however the election is irrevocable. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the statement to have an effect on its financial position, resulis of
operations or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements”. This Statement amends ARB 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest
in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This Statement requires consolidated net income to be reported at
amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the non-controlling interest. It also requires disclosure,
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on the face of the consolidated statement of income, of the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and
to the non-controlling interest. This Statement requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary
is deconsolidated. If a parent retains a non-controlling equity investment in the former subsidiary, that investment is
measured at its fair value. The gain or loss on the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is measured using the fair value of the
non-controlling equity investment. This Statement requires expanded disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent’s owners and the interests of the non-controlling
owners of a subsidiary. Those expanded disclosures include a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the
equity attributable to the parent and the non-controlling owners and a schedule showing the effects of changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary on the equity attributable to the parent. This Statement does not change ARB 51’s
provisions related to consolidation purpose or consolidation policy or the requirement that a parent consolidate all entities in
which it has a controlling financial interest. This Statement does, however, amend certain of ARB 51°s consolidation
procedures to make them consistent with the requirements of Statement 141(R). It also amends ARB 51 to provide
definitions for certain terms and to clarify some terminology. In addition to the amendments to ARB 51, this Statement
amends FASB Statement No. 128, Earnings per Share, so that eamings-per-share data will continue to be calculated the
same way those data were calculated before this Statement was issued. That is, the calculation of earnings-per-share amounts
in consolidated financial statements will continue to be based on amounts attributable to the parent. This statement is
effective for fiscat years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The
Company does not expect the statement to have an effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” This Statement requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities and thereby
improves the transparency of financial reporting. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how and
why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under
Statement 133 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. This Statement is intended to enhance the cutrent disclosure
framework in Statement 133. The Statement requires that objectives for using derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of
underlying risk and accounting designation. This disclosure better conveys the purpose of derivative use in terms of the risks
that the entity is intending to manage. Disclosing the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a
tabular format should provide a more complete picture of the location in an entity’s financial statements of both the
derivative positions existing at period end and the effect of using derivatives during the reporting period. Disclosing
information about credit-risk-related contingent features should provide information on the potential effect on an entity’s
liquidity from using derivatives. Finally, this Statement requires cross-referencing within the footnotes, which should help
users of financial statements locate important information about derivative instruments effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company has not yet determined the
impact of adopting FAS 161 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.108 (“SAB 108™), “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB 108 was issued in
order to eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding how public companies quantify financial statement misstatements.
Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized methods for quantifying the effects of financial statement
misstatements: the “roll-over” method and the “iron curtain” method. The roll-over method focuses primarily on the impact
of a misstatement on the income statement—including the reversing effect of prior year misstaterents—but its use can lead
to the accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron curtain method focuses primarily on the effect of
correcting the period-end batance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year’s errors on the income
statement. We have previously used the roll-over method for quantifying identified financial statement misstatements.

SAB 108 establishes an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the
effects of the misstatements on each of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement
disclosures. This model is commonly referred to as a ““dual approach” because it requires quantification of errors under both
the iron curtain and the roll-over methods. SAB 108 permits public companies to initially apply its provisions either by
(i} restating prior financial statements as if the “dual approach™ had always been applied or (ii) recording the cumulative
effect of initially applying the “dual approach™ as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of July 1, 2006
with an offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings.
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We adopted SAB 108 during the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and elected to use the cumulative effect transition
method in connection with the preparation of our financial statements. The following table summarizes the effects of
applying the guidance in SAB 108:

Cumulative Adjustment
Prior to July 1, Year ended Recorded as of
2005 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2006
Warranty reserve adjustment (2)......cccccoeniiinnnian § 207718 § 30,525 % 328,243
Impact on net income (1088} (3)ceeeevviniviiiiicnn, $ (297,718 § (30,525)
Accumulated deficit (4)..........oovvriinvner e $ (328,243

(1) The Company quantified these errors under the rolt-over method and concluded that they were immaterial both
individually and in the aggregate.

(2} The Company’s calculation of warranty reserve, and the resulting warranty expense, had inappropriately always
excluded boats remaining in dealer inventory. As a result of this error, our warranty reserve liability and warranty
expense was understated by $297,718 in fiscal years beginning prior to July 1, 2005, understated by $30,525 in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Due to our assessment as to the recoverability of deferred tax assets, we have
determined that there is no related tax impact resulting from these understatements.

(3) Represents the net over/(under)statement of net income for the indicated periods resulting from these misstatements.

(4) Represents the net reduction to retained earnings recorded as of July 1, 2006 to record the initial application of SAB
108.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - The Company reports as comprehensive income changes in stockholders’ equity
during the vear from sources other than shareholders. Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to all components (revenues,
expenses, gains, and losses) of comprehensive income (loss) that are excluded from net income (loss). The Company’s only
component of other comprehensive income (loss) is unrealized gains and losses related to interest rate swap agreements. For
the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, was
(3479,199), ($98,811), and $149,997, respectively, resulting in total comprehensive income (loss) of ($2,679,027),
($5,145,097), and $2,554,909 respectively for those years.

Stock Based Compensation - The Company has stock incentive plans that provide for stock-based employee
compensation, inciuding the granting of stock options, to certain key employees and other individuals. The plans are more
fully described in Note 6. Under the Company’s stock incentive plan, stock options are granted at exercise prices that equal
or exceed the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant,

The Company accounts for these plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation™ which establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods and services. The Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains
employee services in share-based payment transactions, SFAS No. 123(R) requires that the fair value of such equity
instruments be recognized as an expense in the historical financial statements as services are performed.

Note 2. Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable consists of the following:

Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007
TTAHE TECEIVADIES «......seee ettt eeeeer et e et e e eae e e te e te st annssns st e mansanterneennesnes $ 3967567 % 3,567,893
OUhET TECEIVADIES .ot e srrr e s s sbe s s s et e e s et ee s s s mtasasrasssains 338,109 138,845
SUDLOLAL. ..ottt ese e e e e e saesb b e eenseeesareseseaet e v te s b eentesnteaneesnes $ 4305676 § 3,706,738
Less Allowance for doubtful BCCOUNES......cooiiivieeeeeciee e eceetree et cre e v e sraesnesn s (21,885) (17,752)
Net aCCOUNIS TeCEIVADIE ...ttt $ 4,283,791 $ 3,688,986
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Note 3. Inventories.

Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended June 30,
2008 ) 2007
Parts and SUPPLES ... e $ 2522375 8§ 3,021,355
WOTK-TN-PIOCESS o..ooviieeveviiistire st s e bt b s et ss b as e s b abesseabassessabasis 2,848,206 3,431,664
FiniShed ZO0AS ......ociiii ettt e seeenenaeanens 2,641,806 246,666
8,012 387 6,699,685
Reserve for ObSOIESCENEE ... ...t er e bttt r et s {70,003) (54,472)

¥ 7942384 3§ 6,645213

All of the inventory is owned by the Company and pledged as collateral on notes and mortgages payable at June 30,
2008.

Note 4. Property, Plant and Equipment.

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Estimated June 30,
Useful Lives

in Years 2008 2007
Land and related improvements ........c.cooceeeveevevevenneceeeevceeeeveec e 10-30 § 4,746,710 §$ 4,746,710
Buildings and related improvements...........ccoooo oo 10-30 10,255,358 10,191,770
ConStIUCHON-TN-PIOZIESS ..c.eeeeeeieececer e tes e rasesn e aneeees N/A 415,734 322,219
Production molds and related plugs .........coooevevvvveve e 8 30,537,211 25,736,699
Machinery and equipmENt...........occcoviiieiieeieie e 3-5 6,425,306 6,325,792
Furniture and fIXTUTES ......ccvevivvisiviierin e e sres s 3 798,456 768,985
COmMPUIET EQUIPINENL.....c..vivietevrisairisressr e se e s b sresssssesssaas 3-5 1,317,490 1,152,731
Transportation eqUIPMENT .......cvcviiiiienrereeneie s e e s 5 281,500 288,537
54,777,765 49,533,443
Accumulated depreciation ..........cuvevevriieiiiissces s (35,455,637 (33,104,217)

5 19,322,128 % 16,429,226

Depreciation expense by asset category was as follows:

2008 2007 2006

Langd improvements.........o.ccoovvevirienienesieneesieieeeeiervinsserssnsssresesnenes 3 136,027 § 135,374 § 132,009
BUIAINES oo 290,796 326,567 309,695
Molds & plugs.......cccooiierii s 1,501,315 1,392,333 1,214,869
Machinery & equipment .............ccccoremrinnrnnin s 294,465 283,781 219,210
Furniture & fIXIUIES ...ooviireeeeei et 55,501 52,553 30,597
TranSportation EQUIPITIENE ...........ocvririirieiiieieii s e ees e eeneeeeeeas 17,998 17,208 23,580
COmPpULET EQUIPIMIENT. .....ceiiireiirieietenereee e e e s 110,400 105,991 90,900

TOtal . e $ 2406502 § 2,313,807 § 2,020,860

All of the land, buildings and improvements are owned by the Company and are held as collateral on notes payable
and long term debt at June 30, 2008.

Construction costs of production molds for new and existing product lines are capitalized and depreciated over an
estimated useful life of eight years. Depreciation starts when the production mold is placed in service to manufacture the
product. The costs include the direct materials, direct labor, and an overhead allocation based on a percentage of direct labor.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the
Company periodically evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
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lives of its long-lived assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such assets may not be recoverable,
During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company reviewed its long-lived asset balances for impairment and no adjustments were
recorded as a result of those reviews.

Note 5. Long-term Debt and Pledged Assets.

On September 19, 2003, the Company entered into a $16,500,000 term loan agreement (the “Loan™) with Regions
Bank, The proceeds from the Loan were used to repay, and concurrently cancel, the long-term loan with Bank of America,
Upon cancellation of the Bank of America loan, the Company expensed that portion of the deferred costs paid to acquire the
loan which had not been amortized during the term of the loan. The amount of the deferred loan costs expensed in Fiscal
2006 is $229,801. The Loan with Regions Bank matures September 19, 2010 and is secured by accounts receivable,
inventories, property, plant and equipment, death proceeds under certain life insurance policies, and commen stock. Principal
payments, beginning at approximately $55,000 and escalating over time, are due monthly, commencing September 30, 2005,
with a final principal payment of $12,646,733 due September 19, 2010. Interest is payable monthly.

On November 16, 2007, the Company restructured its long-term debt. On that date the Company entered into an
Amended & Restated Loan Agreement with Regions Bank consisting of 1) a $14,500,000 term loan (the *Term Loan”) and
2) a $2,000,000 revolving line of credit (the “Revolver”). This agreement amends and restates in ils eatirety the original
$16,500,000 term loan the Company entered into with Regions Bank on September 19, 2005. The Amended & Restated
Loan Agreement matures September 19, 2010 and is secured by accounts receivable, inventories, property, plant and
equipment, death proceeds under certain life insurance policies, and common stock.

Principal payments on the Term Loan continue on the same schedule as under the original loan agreement at
approximately $64,000 per month at June 30, 2008, escalating over time with a final principal payment of $12,286,254 due
September 19, 2010. Interest is payable monthly. The Term Loan includes an original principal amount of $2,125,000 that
bears interest, at the Company’s option, under one of two available methods. The first available interest computation method
provides for interest at the higher of the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds rate plus 2 percent. The second available interest
computation method bears interest at the sum of (i) the one month LIBOR rate divided by 1.0 minus the Eurodollar Reserve
Percentage, and (i) 1.75 percent. The Company may select either of the two interest rate methodologies by providing written
notification to Regions Bank. The balance of the Term Loan, $12,375,000, bears interest that has been set at a fixed annual
rate of 6.45 percent through the use of an interest rate swap. The fixed annual rate of 6.45 percent is a blended rate that
combines the 1.75 percent premium over one month LIBOR referenced above with a fixed interest rate of 4.70 percent paid
by the Company to the counterparty under the terms of our interest rate swap agreement, described below.

Loans under the Revolver must be in a principal amount of at least $500,000 and will accrue interest at a rate equal
1o the higher of'i) Regions Bank’s prime rate plus one half of one percent per annum plus the applicable margin or ii) the Fed
Funds Rate plus one half of one percent per annum plus the applicable margin. The applicable margin for loans under the
revolver is one percent per annum. Principal repayment of any loans under the Revolver will be accomplished by releasing
the receipts of the Company’s lockbox to Regions Bank until any loans under the Revolver, plus accrued interest, is repaid.

The Company utilizes interest rate swap agreements to hedge exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates.
Under United States GAAP, an interest rate swap agreement is considered a derivative financial instrument. Due to the
nature of the derivative and the intended use by the Company, the derivative qualifies as a Cash Flow Hedge. As such, SFAS
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ", requires that the value of the derivative be
“marked-to-market” periodically and any change in the market value of the swap be reflected in the financial statements of
the Company. The market value of the derivative is calculated as of the last day of the period and any change since the end
of the previous period is reflected in an adjustment to Stockholders’ Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the “Swap”) with Regions Bank related to the original Regions Bank
loan and maintains the Swap as a hedge related to the Term Loan of the Amended & Restated Loan Agreement dated
November 16, 2007. The Swap with Regions Banks has a notional amount of $12,375,000, a term of five years and a fixed
annual rate of 4,70% due to Regions Bank. The Swap has a floating interest rate due to the Company which is based on
LIBOR and is reset monthly. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the market value adjustment for the Swap results in an
unrealized loss totaling approximately $350,286 and an unrealized gain totaling $209,809 respectively, SFAS No. 133 also
requires periodic assessment of the effectiveness of any instrument designated as a hedge. If the assessment indicates the
hedge is less than highly effective in offsetting the gains or losses incurred by the hedged transaction, the ineffective portion
of the hedge must be reported currently in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations. The results of the
assessment as of June 30, 2008 indicate that the hedge is highly effective, and we have determined that the ineffective portion
is immaterial.
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The Amended & Restated Loan Agreement contains restrictive covenants setting forth minimum earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) and maximum allowable capital expenditures. Qther covenants include a
number of other limitations, including restrictions on mergers or consolidations, disposal of assets, investments, incurrence of
other indebtedness and payment of dividends, The Company believes that these restrictions will not have a material effect on
the Company’s ability to maintain and improve its facilities and compete with other companies in the boating industry. As
of June 30, 2008 the Company was not in compliance with the covenant setting forth minimum EBITDA for the three months
ending June 30, 2008. The minimum EBITDA required for the three months is $1,603,894. The actual EBITDA reported by
the Company for that period is $1,014,118. Regions Bank has temporarily waived the covenant default for the three months
ended June 30, 2008 and restructured the minimum EBITDA covenants for Fiscal 2009 in an amendment to the Loan
Agreement on September 24, 2008.

On July 12, 2006, the Company entered into an Agreement (the “Credit Facility™), referenced in the consolidated
balance sheet as notes payable, with Regions Bank that provides for a secured, non-revolving line of credit under which the
Company may obtain up to an aggregate of $5 million in loans from the lender during the one-year term of the agreement.
This agreement was terminated and replaced by the Floor Plan agreement described below. At June 30, 2007 there was one
loan outstanding under the Credit Facility in the amount of $799,333 that was repaid in Fiscal 2008.

On September 28, 2007, the Company entered into a Dealer Floor Plan and Security Agreement (the “Floor Plan™)
with Regions Bank (the “Lender”) which provides for a secured, revolving line of credit under which the Company may
obtain up to an aggregate of $5 million in loans from the lender. Each loan constitutes a separate note and is to be secured by
a new or used boat, acquired by Fountain Deaters’ Factory Supersiore, Inc. with the proceeds of the loan, with the intent 10
sell the boat to a retail customer. Upon executing the retail sale, the entire loan amount is to be immediately repaid to the
Lender.

The Company must pay interest monthly on the entire unpaid principal balance of the amounts borrowed under all
outstanding notes. Interest is computed at the Lender’s Prime Rate + 1 percent, as determined on the date of each note. Each
loan under the Floor Plan must be repaid in full within 9 months of the date of the note. At June 30, 2008, the outstanding
amount of all loans was $3,075,606. The Floor Plan contains certain restrictive covenants, applicable to the performance of
the Fountain Dealers Factory Superstore, Inc. subsidiary alone, setting forth minimum EBITDA and minimum Debt Service
Coverage Ratio allowable. The Company believes that these restrictions will not have a material effect on the Company’s
ability to compete effectively in the boating industry. At June 30, 2008, the Company was in compliance with the Floor Plan
covenants.

On May 28, 2008 the Company borrowed $4 miltion from the Baja Marine Corporation (“Baja”} to finance the
acquisition of certain assets from Baja. This indebtedness is evidenced by a promissory note (the * Baja Note”) issued 1o
Baja Marine Corporation pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement and in connection with the Engine Supply Agreement
between the Company and the Brunswick Corporation. The Baja Note is guaranteed by Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.
and is secured by the assets purchased from Baja and certain replacement assets Baja By Fountain, Inc. acquires or develops
in the future, if the assets are used solely to manufacture and sell boats under the Baja name. The Baja Note bears 7% annual
interest. No principal or interest is due under the Note until June 30, 2020. At that time, the Note will be cancelled without
payment by the Company, if the Company has not defaulted on its obligations to the Brunswick Corporation. In addition to
normal cross default provisions common in promissory notes, breach by the Company of either of the two Engine Supply
Agreements described in Item 1.01 of this Report would cause all principal and interest under the Note to become due.

At lune 30, 2008, the Company had outstanding loans totaling $2,900,000 from the Cash Surrender Value of key
man life insurance policies it owns on the life of founder, Chairman and CEQ Reginald M. Fountain, Ir. This amount
consists of ten individual loans, against each of six policies, taken between September 2006 and December 2007. Each loan
accrues interest at a fixed rate. The interest rates are specific to each individual policy and range from 5.77 percent per
annum to 8.00 percent per annum. Interest accrues each month and is due annually on the anniversary date of the loan.
Failure to pay interest when due results in accrued interest being added to the outstanding principal balance. Repayment of
principal and interest is not required, however, failure to do so results in a decrease in the death benefit and, under certain
conditions, may result in termination of policies.
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Following is a summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2008:

2008 2007

Regions Bank term loan (the “Loan™) ......c.cccoovvviiciinnsieie e, $ 14338686 3 15228697
Note Payable to the Brunswick Corporation related to the acquisition of

certain assets (the “Baja assets acquisition) ..o, 4,000,000 —
Borrowings against the Cash Surrender Value of key man life insurance

policies owned by the Company. ......ccovvveeiiinoii e, 2,900,000 1,500,000
Total long term debl.........oooiiii e 21,238,686 16,728,697
Less: Current maturities included in current liabilities: .........cccccvvvvvievcnnnn, (809,738) (759,290)

£ 20428948 § 15,969,407

The estimated aggregate maturities required on the long-term debt for each of the years ending June 30 are as
follows:

200D ..ottt e s et e e em et £ et e r bbb R e b 809,738
ZOLO et bttt et er etk Rt eR e R e RRE e er e st b e b s 863,538
1. 1 1 O OO OO U SO TSRS 12,665,411
INO CONITACTURT TATRTILY Lontreeese ettt et s eem e at e e s s b b sae s edsabs s s bn e et st s ai s 6,900,000

$ 21,238,686

Note 6. Stock Options.

The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R) “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation” which requires recognition of the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments in the financial statements over the period the employee is required to perform the services in exchange for the
award (presumptively the vesting period). SFAS No. 123(R) also requires measurement of the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award based on the grant-date fair value of the award. SFAS No. 123(R) also amends SFAS No.
95 “Statement of Cash Flows” to require that excess tax benefits be reported as financing cash inflows, rather than as a
reduction of taxes paid, which is included within operating cash flows.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective application as permitted under SFAS No.
123(R). Accordingly, prior period amounts have not been restated. Under this application, the Company is required to
record compensation expense for all awards granted after July 1, 2005 and for the unvested portion of previously granted
awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption.

The Company has two stock option plans in effect at June 30, 2008. All options outstanding as of June 30, 2007
were fully vested and no new options were issued during the year ended June 30, 2008, therefore no option related
compensation cost has been charged against income for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007,

On June 21, 1995, the shareholders voted to adopt the 1995 stock option plan. The plan provided 450,000 options to
purchase the common stock to be granted by the Board of Directors to employees or directors of the Company. On August 4,
1995, the Board of Directors voted to grant the 450,000 stock options to Mr. Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. at $4.67 per share,
exercisable for 10 years from the date granted, on a non-qualified basis. On November 9, 2004, the shareholders of Fountain
Powerboats, Inc. approved an amendment to this plan to permit the Board of Directors to extend the term of Mr. Fountain’s
options to August 4, 2008. As of June 30, 2008, none of these options have been exercised. These options have subsequently
all expired.

During 1999, the shareholders voted to adopt the 1999 Employee Stock Option Plan (the Plan), which expires
January 11, 2009. Under the Plan, the board is empowered to grant options to purchase up to 120,000 shares of common
stock to employees, officers, directors and consultants of the Company. Additionally, the Board will determine at the time of
granting the vesting provisions and whether the options will qualify as Incentive Stock Options under Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code (Section 422 provides certain tax advantages to the employee recipients). During the Company’s
November 19, 2002 Annual Meeting the shareholders approved amendment of the 1999 Employee Stock Option Plan to
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increase the number of shares available for issuance under that plan from 120,000 to 175,000 shares. As of June 30, 2008,
128,333 options are available for grant under the plan.

The fair market value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. No options were granted during the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

The risk free rate is based upon a U.S. Treasury instrument with a life that is similar to the expected life of the
option grant. Expected volatility is based upon the historical volatility of the price of the Company’s common stock for a
period consistent with the anticipated life of the option granted. The expected term of the options is based upon the average
life of previously issued stock options. The expected dividend yield is based upon current yield on date of grant. No post-
vesting restrictions exist for these options.

A summary of the status of the options granted under the Company’s 1995 and 1999 stock option plans and other
agreements at June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, and changes during the periods then ended is presented in the table below:

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Excrcise Price

Qutstanding at beginning of period...... 460,000 $4.59 470,000 $4.36 500,000 $4.36
Exercised.......ccovvrvinnrnreninneseecisnnens — — 10,000 $1.60 — —
Forfeited........cooooviiiiiieeeceeee 10,000 $1.344 — — 30,000 $1.60
Outstanding at end of period................ 450,000 $4.67 460,000 $4.59 470,000 $4.53
Exercisable at end of period............... 450,000 $4.67 460,000 $4.59 470,000 $4.53

A summary of the status of the options outstanding under the Company’s stock option plans and other agreements at
June 30, 2008 is presented below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Range of Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise
Excrcise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
$4.67 450,000 .10 years 4.67 450,000 4.67

The Company had no options exercised during the year ended June 30, 2008. Of the outstanding options on June
30, 2008, none had intrinsic value. Of the options outstanding on June 30, 2007, only 10,000 had intrinsic value, totaling
$15,400

Note 7. Income Taxes.

The Company has provided for deferred income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “*Accounting for [ncome
Taxes”, whereby deferred income taxes are determined based upon the enacted income tax rates for the years in which these
taxes are estimated to be pavable or recoverable. Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences resulting from a
difference between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements.

The significant components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are
as follows:

.

2008 2007 2006
Current tax provision
FEACral ..ot et a e n e ne s $ — 3 — 3 —
AL ..ttt et sa s s Aar b e R bbb bt et a e et e e eneenenn — — —
Total Current taX ProvVISION.......coiciveisieie ittt s — — —
Deferred tax provision
FEACTAL ... ee s s ese e eeesesee s ee s eee e seseseeeseseeesses s ses s sesseeees e s s (643,749) (1,158,091) 383,221
SEALE ... eee e eee s ese et et s et eee e e e s e e e es e esesmeee e eee e (146,840)  (259,031) 77,037
Total deferred tax ProviSION. ...ttt (790,589) (1,417,122) 460,258




Provision for income tax expense before adjustment to deferred tax

asset valuation allowance ..o (790,589) (1417,122) 460,258
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance ... 790,589 2,700,850  (1,744,004)
Net provision (benefit) for iInCOMe (aXes.......cocoevviriinnesievenie i $ —  $ 1,283,728 $(1,283,746)

The difference between the provision (benefit) for income taxes and the amounts computed by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate of 34% to income before income taxes is summarized below:

2008 2007 2006

Expected income tax expense (benefit) .......ccooveiiiiiine $ (747.942) $(i,279,269) $ 381,197
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

State income taxes, net of federal tax effect..........ccooveiiiieiie. (100,180)  (171,347) 51,058

Nondeductible Xpenses.........occocvviiniiiie e 57,533 37,215 28.004

Adjustment to deferred tax asset valuation allowance ...........ccoovevenenn 790,589 2,700,850 {1,744,004)

Other permanent differences .......covovvvviiiininicrce s — (3,721) —

Provision (benefit) for iNCOME tAXES.....covivrinivrmnvininrencin e 5 — % 1,283,728 $(1,283,746)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of deferred
taxes at June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets relating to:
Inventory capitalization difference. ... b 223,030 5 191,136
Bad debt alloOWANCE ...cviiiiieiieen ittt e e 8.437 6,843
Reserve for obsolete inVentory........cccvevvviiiniinicini e 181,437 20,999
Reserve for buy Backs ... 30,372 24,719
WAITANLY TESEIVE - oveieeeeieieaieieeteieeeeeeeasee e e aeseeese e e ene e seseeebe st sbeeneseeaas e saaas 205,069 236,576
Accrued dealer INCEMLIVES ...ocvviivieriversesssssrsimrereeseemreseae e e amessesssseeesaeessseeneen 96,842 234,063
Reserve for health INSUFANCE ..covviiveeviniieciecsireee e ee e e e eeeenenes 58,982 55,898
Accrued eXecutive COMPENSAtIoN ... ...t e —
Net operating loss carryforward...........ccovvirccnnes s resasnes 3,683,336 3,130,059
Charitable contributions carryforward .......cccoceeevvieerininini e 2,128 2,713
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward.........coovvimeiniincinnn e 41,524 41,524
INvestment tax CTEUILS. ... ...icvivie st ee e ee e ee et s e e bs s b s s s nanesanas 86,204 86,294
Total deferred tAX ASSELS ...oocviiieeeceee ettt 4,617,450 4,030,826
Less valuation alloWanCe ..o s abe s 3,491,439 2,700,850
Deferred tax assets net of valuation alloWance........ccvvevievvvvieveievessmensie e s ceeseen s 1,126,011 1,329,976
Deferred tax liabilities relating to:
Property and SQUIPMENT ....c...cviieie e e e et e (1,126,011) (1,329,976)
Unrealized gain 00 SWap ..o e sssssssnssss e — (80,896)
Total deferred tax Hability .....ooocvvevireneerinevrcrcr s (1,126,011) {1,410,872)
Net recorded deferred tax asset (Hability)......ooooiiriii s $ — § (80,396)

Deferred income taxes are presented in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows at June 30, 2008
and 2007:

2008 2007
Current deferTed TAX ASSEL. ....ocviveiiarereivesssreisrerererersesssessesasseneneseesseseneneesnsenes $ — ] —
Noncurrent deferred tax Hability.......cocovoeiveiinnnecreec e, — (80,896)
$ — 8 (80,896)
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As of June 30, 2008 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $3,491,439 that were fully offset by a valuation
allowance because, as of that date, it was Management’s conclusion that there continued to be doubt as to whether those
deferred tax assets were more likely than not 10 be realized in the future. The deferred tax assets principally related to the
potential future benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been generated during the years ended
June 30, 2002 2007 and 2008 when the Company generated substantial net losses. During the year ended June 30, 2007 the
Company performed an evaluation, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes, of the likelihood of realization of its deferred tax assets. The evaluation resulted in the application of a
valuation allowance, which is still in effect at June 30, 2008.

The Company has available federal and state operating loss carry forwards at June 30, 2008 of approximately
$9,616,438 and $9,085,379, respectively, which expire at various dates through 2028.

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies.

Employment Agreement: The Company entered into a one-year employment agreement in 1989 with it’s
Chairman, Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. The agreement provides for automatic one-year renewals at the end of each year subject
to Mr. Fountain’s continued employment.

Dealer Interest: The Company regularly pays a portion of dealers’ interest charges for floor plan financing. These
interest charges amounted to $1,712,347 for Fiscal 2008, $1,534,302 for Fiscal 2007 and $1,462,821 for Fiscal 2006. They
are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as part of net sales. At June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006
the estimated dealer incentive interest included in accrued dealer incentives amounted to $246.898, $202,791and $257,050,
respectively.

Product Liability and Other Litigation: There were various warranty lawsuits against the Company extant at
June 30, 2008. The Company intends to vigorously defend its interests in these matters. The Company carries sufficient
product liability insurance to cover attorney’s fees and any losses, which may occur from these lawsuits over and above the
insurance deductibles. The Company is also involved from time to time in other litigation through the normal course of its
business. Management believes there are no such undisclosed claims which would have a material eftect on the financial
position of the Company.

Manufacturer Repurchase Agreements: The Company makes available through third-party finance companies
floor plan financing for many of its dealers. Sales to participating dealers are approved by the respective finance companies.
If a participating dealer does not satisfy its obligations under the floor plan financing agreement in effect with its commercial
lender(s) and boats are subsequently repossessed by the lender(s), then under certain circumstances the Company may be
required to repurchase the repossessed boats if it has executed a repurchase agreement with the lender(s). At June 30, 2008
and 2007, the Company had a contingent liability to repurchase boats in the event of dealer defaults and if repossessed by the
commercial lenders amounting to $22.,869,162 and$24,375,708, respectively. The Company has reserved for the future losses
it might incur upon the repossession and repurchase of boats from commercial lenders. The amount of the reserve is based
upon probable future events, which can be reasonably estimated. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the allowance for boat
repurchases was $78,787 and $64,124, respectively,

401 (k) Payroll Savings Plan: During Fiscal 1991, the Company initiated a 401(k) Payroll Savings Plan (ihe 401{k)
Plan} for all employees. Eligible employees may elect to defer up to twenty-five percent of their salaries. The amounts
deferred by the employees are fully vested at all times. The Company currently matches fifty percent of the employee’s
deferred salary amounts limited to a maximum of six percent of their salaried amounts, or effectively a maximum of three
percent of their salaries. Amounts contributed by the Company vest a1 a rate of twenty percent per year of service.
Mr. Fountain, by his own election, does not participate in the 401(k) Plan. There are no post-retirement benefit plans in
effect. The Company’s employer contribution to the 401(k} Plan was $79,434 for Fiscal year 2008, $125,429 for Fiscal 2007
and $131,626 for Fiscal 2006.

Environmental: The Company was notified in 1994 by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA”) that it has been identified as a potential responsible party (“PRP”) and may incur, or may have incurred, liability for
the remediation of contamination at the Seaboard waste disposal site, located in High Point, North Carolina (also referred to
as the Jamestown, North Carolina site) resulting from the disposal of hazardous substances at that site by a third party
contractor of the Company. The Company’s share of the approximately 14.3 million gallons of waste is 19,245 gallons, a
volumetric share of .1387%. The Company’s liability at this site was defined by the Group administrator to be $28,105. The
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Company has entered into a de Minimus Settlement Agreement, which is expected to be executed in 2009. The entire
$28,105 liability has been accrued and is reflected in the consolidated balance sheet.

Note 9. Export Sales.

The Company had export sales to customers in the following geographic areas:

Year Ended June 30,
2008 2007 2006
Canada, Central and South AMEIICa........coeeveeeiieeee e § 4,176,865 $§ 3,689071 § 1,849,529
BEUPOPE ..ottt s e 5,310,545 4,059,120 2,722,920
Middle Bast. . ...ooiiiiiiiiiiiiecceeesrrrersersnrrr e s rssrre e s re s ey s ste e bt ae e e e e ees 1,378,907 455,687 2,753,281
N {3 1o WU OSSOSO PP PSSR — _ 965,910
BASTA ettt oottt e et eeesebae e ae e e bt e te e ettt e eane e et e e e e r e e e anaesar e senn e 189,162 300,691 —
AUSITRIIA .o veeceei i ceeee s sr e et eeebe e e e e e s e e emen e be e e sae e e be s saareebennanennares 235,494 314,418 —

$ 11290973 § 83818987 § §291,640

Note 10, Transactions with Related Parties.

The Company expensed the following amounts for apartment rentals owned or controlled by Reginald M. Fountain,
Jr., the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer: in Fiscal 2008, $4,985; in Fiscal 2007, $3,576; and in Fiscal 2006,

$25,435.

The Company expensed the following amounts for aircraft services and rentals to an entity controlled by Reginald
M. Fountain, Jr.: in Fiscal 2008, $312,330; in Fiscal 2007, $297,785; and in Fiscal 2006, $255,339.

A Director of the Company purchased a single boat in Fiscal 2008 for $270,000, which was at standard wholesale
price for the boat model and optional features,

Note 11. Concentration of Credit Risk.

Concentration of credit risk arises due to the Company operating in the marine industry, particularly in the United
States. In Fiscal 2008, one dealer accounted for 12.5 percent of sales, one dealer accounted for 8.5 percent of sales, one dealer
accounted for 6.9 percent of sales, one dealer accounted for 5.1 percent of sales and one dealer accounted for 5% of sales. In
Fiscal 2007 one dealer accounted for 13.6 percent of sales, one accounted for 9 percent of sales and four each accounted for
5.0 to 5.5 percent of sales. In Fiscal 2006 one dealer accounted for 10.9 percent of sales, one accounted for 8.5 percent of
sales and four each accounted for 5.8 to 6.3 percent of sales.

Note 12. Earnings(Loss) per Share.

Basic eamnings(loss) per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted- average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential commeon shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that
would result from the assumed issuance. Potential commeon shares that may be issued by the Company relate to outstanding
stock options and is determined using the treasury stock method.

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding used
in basic earnings per share ... 4,587,193 4,821,987 4819275
Effect of dilutive Stock Options ........cceerv v e — — 84,674
Weighted number of common shares and potential dilutive
common shares outstanding used in dilutive earnings per
SHATE o.ecevreceiit e essee e st 4,587,193 4,821,987 4,903,949

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, there were 450,000 options that were antidilutive due to the net loss
generated by the Company. These antidilutive options have been omitted from the calculation of diluted eamings per share
for those years. For the year June 30, 2006, there were no antidilutive options outstanding.
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Note 13 — Sales by Preduct Line.

The Company’s net sales resulted from the following product lines for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and

2006:

2008 2007 2006
SPOMS BOALS. ... et $ 25,086,667 $ 28,055,275 $§ 31,799,204
EXPTESS CTUISETS 1.vevveeevearernrnrsrneenreresrescssesererrsserersanesssnesercosssemesnes 11,457,756 9,399,064 15,760,240
Sport fishing Boats ... 28,169,615 29,629,864 29,194,785
Other 3,488,582 1,745,784 2,471,995
N SIS ettt ittt ittt s ar b tr b s sanrse b tne s ranara st asa s enres $ 68202620 $ 68820987 § 79226224

Note 14 — Leases.

The Company leases, under separate non-cancelable operating lease agreements, certain machinery and equipment.

These leases expire at various dates through October 2013. Future rentals under these leases are as follows:

$

144,736
115,581
91,762
21,914

1,648

375,641

Rental expense amounted to $168,184, $106,115 and $39,767 during the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006,

respectively.

Note 15 — Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

While significant losses, covenant violations, negative cash flow from operations and the weak economy may raise
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to retumn to sustained profitability and positive cash flow from operations,
management believes such a concern may be alleviated by the steps taken to improve performance. Management’s current
plans and initiatives are directed towards returning the Company to profitability in Fiscal 2009. Among those plans are
stabilizing revenue and increasing prices of some boat models to compensate for increases in material and production costs,
improving manufacturing efficiency by lowering production labor costs and reducing advertising and offshore racing
expenses. Furthermore, management believes that dealer inventory is lower than it has been for the past five years, thus
providing a positive situation for sustained sales. The uncertainty of the fiberglass recreational boating market, volatile
material prices, effects of fuel and oil prices on transportation costs and the economy in general, and the effects of the
weakened housing market and mortgage crisis on consumer confidence and availability of discretionary spending, may cause

actual results to differ materialty from those planned.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions Charged

Fiscal 2008 Balance to Costs and Additions Charged Payments/ Bzlance

Valuation and Qualifying Account Description June 30, 2007 Expenses to Other Accounts Deductions June 30, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts........ $ 17,752 $ 18463 % — $ 14,330 § 21,885
Inventory Obsolescence Reserve........ 54,472 72,117 — 56,586 70,003
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ... 2,700,850 790,589 —_ o 3491439
Warranty Expense Reserve ................ 941,928 1,037,405 — 1,119,134 860,199
Allowance for Boat Repurchases ....... 64,124 14,663 _— — 78,787

Additions Charged

Fiscal 2007 Balance to Costs and Additions Charged Payments/ Balance

Valuation and Qualifying Account Description June 30, 2006 Expenses to Other Accounts Deductions June 30, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts ....... $§ 37,331 $ 19825 % — $ 39404 § 17,752
Inventory Obsolescence Reserve........ 32,051 68,071 — 45,650 54,472
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ... — 2,700,850 — — 2,700,850
Warranty Expense Reserve ................ 632,357 1,325,133 328,243 1,343,805 941,928
Allowance for Boat Repurchases....... 15,459 117,879 — 69,214 64,124

Additions Charged

Fiscal 2006 Balance to Costs and Additions Charged Payments/ Balance

Valuation and Qualifying Account Description June 30, 2005 Expenses to Other Accounts Deductions June 30, 2006
Allowance for doubtful accounts ......§ 221,572 § 83546 § — $ 267,787 $ 37331
Inventory Obsolescence Reserve........ 72,682 42,000 — 82,691 32,051
Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ... 1,744,004 (1,744,004) — — —
Warranty Expense Reserve ............... 740,000 26,579 — 134,222 632,357
Allowance for Boat Repurchases ....... 75,000 61,719 — 121,260 15,459

Detailed disclosure of activity in Schedule IT accounts during Fiscal 2008

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Deductions during Fiscal 2008 to the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts totaled
$14,330. That amount consists of accounts actually written off as bad debt totaling $23,263, which is partially offset by
$8,933 from reversing allowances for accounts, previously determined to be uncollectible, which were properly settled.

Inventory Obsolescence Reserve — During Fiscal 2008, $56,586 of inventory was disposed of and deducted from the
reserve,

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance ~ As of June 30, 2008 the Company had net deferred tax assets of $3,491,439
that were fully offset by a valuation allowance because, as of that date, it was Management’s conclusion that there is doubt as
to whether those deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized in the future. The deferred tax assets principally
related to the potential future benefits of tax net operating loss carryforwards, most of which had been geuaerated during the
years ended June 30, 2002, 2007 and 2008 when the Company generated substantial net losses.

Warranty Expense Reserve — The Company records a liability for standard product warranties. The liability is
recorded using historical warranty experience to estimate projected warranty costs. If necessary, the Company adjusts its
liability for specific warranty matters when they become known and are reasonably estimable. The estimate of future
warranty liability is calculated at least once during each quarter and appropriate adjustments are made to this liability
account. During Fiscal 2008 $1,037,405 was expensed as warranty expense and added to the reserve, and $1,119,134 was
relieved from the reserve to account for warranty repairs. The adoption of SAB 108 during Fiscal 2007 resulted in a
$328,243 Addition to the Warranty Reserve, and, therefore, Warranty Expense.

38




Allowance for Boat Repurchases — Deductions during Fiscal 2008 and 2007 totaled $0 and $69,214 respectively,
reflecting the amount previously reserved for boats which were sold, subsequent to repurchase, during Fiscal 2008 and 2007.
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FOUNTAIN POWERBOATS INDUSTRIES, INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
UNAUDITED SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Fiscal 2008
INEE SALES ..ottt ettt e ea $ 18049430 3§ 15196,038 § 14222639 § 20,734,513
GTOSS PrOfit...cvcieivcvice e e e et se e 2,704,586 2,216,271 1,101,194 3,380,523
(Loss) Income before taxes ........cccovvneninnineeee e 273,380 (765,055) (1,966,473) 258,305
INEt (10S8) INCOIME .....eceeeirieee ettt ab s e bs e asssar et s eas 273,340 (765,055) (1,966,473) 258,305
Net (loss) income per share:

BaSIC (.ot e e .06 (.16) (.45) 07

DHIULEM ...ttt ers e 06 (.16) (.45) 07
Fiscal 2007 *
INEL SAIES oo $ 19413852 § 13,032,786 § 16,475,688 § 19,907,661
GrOSS PrOfTl.cc ittt eanas 2,875,917 1,123,938 1,374,322 3,749,583
Income before taxes..........o.oovviriiinencrser e (277,670) (2,363,585) (1,640,690) 535,059
NELINCOMIE ..veeeeeeercreeririreee e ree s e sne e sea et be e e r e e aneans (196,670) (1,495,479) (3,873,524) 535,059
Net income per share:

BaSIC coovri e (.04) (31 (.80) A1

DHIUIEA ... (.04) (.31) (-80) A1
Fiscal 2006
INEE SAIES ..o e $ 19,157,736 § 18,210,092 $ 18,526,332 $ 23,332,064
GroSS PrOTH..cceiiiiii e et e 3,676,114 2,897,702 2,704,533 3,735,452
Income (1055) BefOTe tAXES ...viiivv v ce s e e e s saeenees 697,058 319,296 22,410 82,402
INEt INCOME (0SS veeereecrrrririrrritereeterresteeres s reessassrsaesresseissssssssessenes 697,058 319,296 22,410 1,366,148
Net income (loss) per share:

BASIC oo 14 .07 .00 29

Drluted ... 14 .07 .00 .28

* Quarterly data for Fiscal 2007 is presented after giving the effect of the adoption of SAB 108 as of the first quarter of Fiscal
2007. The sum of quarterly earnings data in this presentation may differ from the Consolidated Statement of Operations due
to the adoption of SAB 108. See Note | of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for further discussion of SAB 108.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Independent Registered Public Accounting firms on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by
this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assuranee that the
Company is able to record, process, summarize and report in a timely manner the information required to be disclosed by the
Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of
any system of disclosure controls and procedures. Even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide
reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.

The Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, including its internal control over financial reporting, are

reviewed on an ongoing basis and from time to time may be changed in order to enhance their effectiveness. In connection
with the above evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, no change in internal contro! over financial
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reporting was identified that occurred during the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008, and that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Fountain Powerboat Industries, [nc. (the "Company"} is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company's internal control system was designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation.

The Company's management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2008. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on that assessment, we believe
that, as of June 30, 2008, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s
registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the
Company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

8/ Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. /S/ Irving L. Smith
Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. Irving L. Smith
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
Part 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Directors and Executive Officers. Information regarding the Company’s directors and executive officers that
appears under the captions (1) “Proposal 1: Election of Directors,” and (2) "Executive Officers,” in the Company’s definitive
Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
incorporated herein by reference.

Audit Committee. Information regarding the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors that appears
under the captions “Committees of our Board — General” and “Audit Commiittee,” of the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting
of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Audit Committee Financial Expert. Information appearing under the caption “Audit Committee Financial Expert”
in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Information regarding compliance by the
Company’s directors, executive officers and principal shareholders with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that appears under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with
the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics. Information appearing under the caption “Code of Ethics” in the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information appearing under the headings “Executive Compensation™ and Director Compensation” in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

1tem12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Beneficial Ownership of Securities and Certain Change in Control Arrangements, Information regarding the
beneficial ownership of the Company’s equity securities appearing under the caption “Beneficial Ownership of Common
Stock™ in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s annual
meeting of sharecholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. The following table summarizes all
compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements that were in effect on June 30, 2008, and under which shares
of the Company’s common stock were authorized for issuance.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

(a) @
Number of shares (b) Number of shares remaining
to be issued upon  Weighted-average  available for future issuance under
exercise of exercise price of  equity compensatian plans (excluding
Plan category outstanding options outstanding options shares reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders ... 450,000(1) $ 4.67 128.333(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
hOIdEIS ..o -0- — —
TOtAL ..ot s 450,000 $ 4.67 128,333

(1} Consists of one option granted under the Company’s 1995 Stock Option Plan which expired unexercised on August 4,
2008. No further options may be granted under this plan,

{2) Consists of shares available for the grant of options under the Company’s 1999 Employee Stock Option Plan.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Related Person Transactions. Information appearing under the caption “Transactions with Related Persons™ in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Director Independence. Information appearing under the caption “Corporate Governance — Director
Independence” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the
Company’s next Annual Meeting of Sharecholders is incorporate herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information appearing under the caption “Services and Fees During Fiscal 2008” in the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement to be filed with the Commission in connection with the Company’s next Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
incorporated herein by reference.

Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Firancial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents filed with Report:

(1)  Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are contained in Item 8
of this Report.

Page
Report of Gregory & Associates, LL.C 17
Report of Dixon Hughes PLLC 18
Consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2008 and 2007 19
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Consolidated statements of operations for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 20

Consolidated statements of stockholder’s equity for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 21

Consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 22

Notes to consolidated {inancial statements 24
(2} Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule Il - Valuation and Quatifying Accounts 38

(3) Exhibits. An index of exhibits that are a part of this Form 10-K appears following the signature page and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 {d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this repart to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FOUNTAIN POWERBOAT INDUSTRIES, INC.

By:/S/ Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.

Septernber 29, 2008 ... Reginald M, Fountain, Jir.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

IS/ Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. .............coeceoveennvennccccnnnn, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and September 29, 2008
Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. ........cccccocovvrrnrnrvrnnrenens President (Principal Executive Officer)

I8/ Craig F. (GOESS ovuvererieviereririrveiree e sasassasnsssasensens DIFECIOE September 29, 2008
Craig F. GOeSS ..o

IS/ Guy L. Hecker, Jr. .......ooooviivvceeeecciiiceeenn. Director September 29, 2008
Guy L. Hecker, Jr.....ccccooiiin e

I8/ David C. Miller .........ooovevieececcnicvnrennes s Director September 29, 2008
David C. Miller ...

I8! Anthony J. ROMersd............cocociiniiniinniicnnns Director September 29, 2008
Anthony J. Romersa..........co.oooivviininceecee

IS/ Anthony A. Sarandes ...............oceeeveveciveciveinnnn., Director September 29, 2008
Anthony A. Sarandes ..o

IS! Mark L. Spencer ... Director September 29, 2008
Mark L. SPencer ....cccvicieiiiiiiecce i rrsress e

ISHIrving L Smith......cocciiicii Chief Financial Officer September 29, 2008
Teving L. SMmithu e (Principal Financial Officer)

IST ROGEr F. SCOM......oooveiieicieiniverisererneeeneesavaracnaas Principal Accounting Officer September 29, 2008
Roger F. Scott....oooovviniriccceecrereeee e,
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10.05 *

10.06

10.07

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, between and among Baja Marine Corporation,
Brunswick Corporation, Baja by Fountain, Inc., and Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2008)

Registrant’s Articles of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000}

Registrant’s Bylaws, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000)

Form of stock certificate (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005)

Employment Agreement dated March 31, 1989, between Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. and Fountain Powerboats,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005)

Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2004, as amended on October 18, 2004, between R. David
Knight and Fountain Powerboats, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annuat
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005)

Stock Option Agreement dated August 4, 1995, as amended, between Registrant and Reginald M. Fountain,
Jr. {incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2001)

1999 Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999)

1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004)

Master Agreement between Registrant, Fountain Powerboats, Inc., Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. and Brunswick
Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
July 17, 2003)

Engine Supply Agreement between Registrant Fountain Powerboats, Inc. and Brunswick Corporation
(incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 17, 2003)

Omnibus Amendment and Agreement dated September 13, 2005, between Brunswick Corporation, Fountain
Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. (incorporated herein by
reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2005)

Second Omnibus Amendment and Agreement dated June 21, 2007, between Brunswick Corporation, Fountain
Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. (incorporated herein by
reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 25, 2007)

Third Omnibus Amendment and Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, between Brunswick Corporation,
Fountain Powerboat Industries, [nc., Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Reginald M. Fountain, Jr. (incorporated
herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K May 28, 2008)

First Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated November 16, 2007, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc.,
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Dealers' Factory Superstore, Inc., and Regions Bank (filed
herewith)

First Amendment dated September 24, 2008 to First Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated November
16, 2007, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc,, Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Dealers’ Factory
Superstore, Inc. and Regions Bank (filed herewith)

Dealer Floor Plan and Security Agreement dated September 28, 2007, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc.,
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Dealers' Factory Superstore, Inc., and Regions Bank (filed
herewith}

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Financing Statement dated September 19, 2005,

45




10.15

10.16
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10.18

10.19
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10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

31.01
31.02
32

99.01

between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2005)

First Amendment dated July 12, 2006 to Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and
Financing Statement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Regions Bank
(incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 23,
2006)

Second Amendment dated September 28, 2007 to Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement
and Financing Statement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Regions Bank
(filed herewith)

Third Amendment dated November 16, 2007 to Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and
Financing Statement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc., and Regions Bank (filed
herewith)

Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated November 16, 2007, between Fountain Powerboats, Inc.,
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., Fountain Dealers' Factory Super Store, Inc., and Regions Bank (filed
herewith)

Pledge Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions
Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 19, 2005)

First Amendment dated July 12, 2006, to Pledge Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between Fountain
Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 23, 2006)

Second Amendment dated September 28, 2007, to Pledge Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank (filed herewith)

Third Amendment dated November 16, 2007, to Pledge Agreement dated September 19, 2005, between
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc., and Regions Bank (filed herewith)

Secured Subordinated Promissory Note dated as of May 28, 2008, of Baja by Fountain, Inc., to Baja Marine
Corporation, and guaranteed by Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2008)

Security Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, between Baja by Fountain, Inc. and Baja Marine Corporation,
(incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2008)

Engine Supply Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, between Baja by Fountain, Inc. and the Mercury Marine
Division of Brunswick Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2008)

Security Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, by Baja by Fountain, Inc., to Regions Bank (incorporated
herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2008)

Guaranty Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, by Baja by Fountain, Inc., to Regions Bank (incorporated
herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2008)

Subordination Agreement dated as of May 28, 2008, by and between Baja Marine Corporation and Regions
Bank, and consented to by Fountain Powerboat [ndustries, Inc., Baja by Fountain, Inc., and Fountain
Powerboats, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to exhibits to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated May 28, 2008)

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith)
Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) (filed herewith)

Certifications of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(furnished herewith)

Registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Commission

* Denotes a management compensation plan or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION
Required by Rule 13a-14{a)

I, Reginald M. Fountain Jr., certify that;

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e} and 15d -15(e)) and internal control over reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b.  Designed such intemmal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices;

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d.  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report} that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 29, 2008.........cccovomiieeeceeiee s /8! Reginald M. Fountain

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION
Required by Rule 13a-14(a)

1, Irving L. Smith, certify that:

1.

[ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d -15(¢)) and internal control over reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, inchuding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b.  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices;

¢.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d.  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or
persons performing the equivalent functions}):

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contrel over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 29, 2008.............oviimimnin e I8/ frving L. Smith

Irving L. Smith
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

Certifications
Pursuoant to Section 906
Of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(18 ULS.C. Section 1350)

The undersigned hereby certifies that based on their knowledge (i) the foregoing annual report on Form 10-K filed by
Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. (the “Company™) for the year ended June 30, 2008, fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii} the information contained in that Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by
Section 906, has been provided to Fountain Powerboat Industries, Inc. and will be retained by Fountain Powerboat Industries,
Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: September 29, 2008.......ccccorvireeirireieseersecreeeenieeie e IS/ Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: September 29, 2008........ccoiviiininincccccece e IS/ Irving L. Smith

Irving L. Smith
Chief Financial Officer
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Directors

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and President
Fountain Powerboats Industries, Inc. and
Fountain Powerboats, Inc,
Washington, North Carolina

Guy L. Hecker, Jr.

Retired

Served as:

President

Stafford, Burke & Hecker, Inc.
Alexandria, Virginia

David C. Miller, CPA
Owner

David C. Miller, CPA/ABV
Greenville, North Carolina

Mark L. Spencer

President

Spencer Communications, Inc,
Meontrose, Califormia

Anthony A. Sarandes
Retired

Served As:

Chairman and Consultant
Equiflor Corporation
Miarni, Florica

Anthony J. Romersa
Retired
Served as:
¢ Chief Operating Officer
Fountain Powerboats, Inc.
* Director OF Planning
Marine Crerations of Brunswick Corp,
Bradenton, Forida

Craig Goess

President and Owner
Greenville Toyota, Inc.
Greenville, North Carclina

Officers

Reginald M. Fountain, Jr.
Chairrnan, Chief Executive Officer
and President

Irving L. Smith
Chief Financial Officer

Roger Scott
Secretary and Treasurer

Corporate Headquarters

1653 Whichards Beach Road

Post Office Drawer 457
Washington, North Carclina 27888
252.975.2000

Common Stock Listing
Armerican Stock Exchange

Notice of Annual Meeting

The annual meeting will be held on
Tuesday, November 18, 2008 at 1C:00
am at the office of the compary, 1653
Whichards Beach Road, Washington,
North Carclina

Registrar and Transfer Agent
First Citizens Bark
Shareholder Services (FCCB1)
4300 Six Forks Rd.

Raleigh, North Carolina 27608
919.7168.2008

Shareholders requiring a change of
narme, address or ownership of stock,
as wel as information about shareholder
raecords, and lost or stolen certificates
should contact First Citizens Bank at the
above address

Legal Counsel
Ward and Smith, PA
New Bern, North Carolina

Auditors
Gregory & Associates, LILC
Salt Lake City, Utah

Market for Company’s Common Equity
and Related Stockholder Matters

The Compary's common stock, $.01

par value, trades on the American Stock
Exchange {under the symbxal "FPB™). The
following table lists the high and low clos-
ing prices for the company’s common
stock as reported on the American Stock
Exchangs for each calendar quarter dur-
ing our fiscal years ended June 30, 2007
and 2008

Quarter Ending Low
September 2006 i 4.00
December 2006....... b 3683
March 2007 ... S 375
JUNE 2007 .3, 2.51
September 2007 ... 288 1.80
Cecember 2007 ... 228 110
March 2008............ .. 183 112
June 2008..... .. 1.89 85

The company has not declared or paid
any cash dividends on it's cocmmon
stock since it first began operations.

I the future, any declaration and pay-
ment of cash dividends will be subject
to the Board of Directors’ evaluation

of the company’s operating results,
fimancial condition, future growth plans,
general business and economic condi-
tions and other relevant considerations.
Management of the Company expacts
that, for the foreseeabile future, prof-

its generated by the company will be
retained as additional capital to support
e company's operations and that the
Company will not pay any cash dividends.

On June 30, 2008 there were 208 hold-
ers of record for the Company’'s com-
mon Stock




caunien oorcomnals. Iee.
A0 Zonwns Y
Wizsnagioo, MO 27888
2P Er5 00

‘CuSlEmIC e nh25.c0m




